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Founded in 1993, the National Petroleum Services 

Company (NAPESCO) was the first Kuwaiti public 

shareholding company specialized in oilfield services 

to meet the needs of the Kuwait Oil Company. Since 

its inception, NAPESCO has pursued a continuous 

expansion strategy focused on delivering integrated, 

high-quality services across its operational activities. 

This approach has contributed to strengthening the 

company’s presence and achieving significant growth 

in its performance.

In its early stages, NAPESCO concentrated on providing 

cementing services to Kuwait Oil Company, relying 

solely on national expertise without the support of an 

international partner. The company’s success in this 

field positioned it as a leading provider of cementing 

services to both Kuwait Oil Company and the Joint 

Operations.

Over the years, NAPESCO has diligently diversified its 

portfolio by expanding the range of services offered 

in the oilfields. These include coiled tubing, well 

simulation, hydraulic fracturing, and environmental 

services. This strategic diversification and expansion 

have significantly broadened NAPESCO’s operational 

scope and enhanced its reputation as a key player in 

the oilfield services sector. As a result, the company has 

become well-positioned to compete with international 

companies operating in similar domains.

NAPESCO’s revenue is primarily generated from 

three core areas: drilling services, well services, and 

environmental services.

The company maintains strong relationships with most 

subsidiaries of the Kuwait Petroleum Corporation, 

particularly with the Kuwait Oil Company. This long-

term strategic partnership with Kuwait Oil Company 

has proven successful in overcoming challenges and 

fostering productive collaboration between the public 

and private sectors.

Kuwait Oil Company views NAPESCO as a reliable local 

partner, especially during crises and pandemics when 

international companies face restrictions in accessing 

the local market. In addition, NAPESCO has secured 

medium-scale environmental contracts with both the 

Kuwait National Petroleum Company (KNPC) and the 

Kuwait Integrated Petroleum Industries Company 

and is currently working on further expansion plans. 

Nonetheless, Kuwait Oil Company remains NAPESCO’s 

principal partner.

Over the years, the company has achieved consistent 

and sustained growth in both revenue and net profit.

NAPESCO relies primarily on contracts with Kuwait 

Oil Company and the Joint Operations, as is typical 

for companies operating in this sector. However, the 

company is actively pursuing business development 

opportunities in new regional markets, where greater 

growth potential exists. This includes enhancing 

current services and introducing new offerings to both 

existing and prospective clients.

NAPESCO is also exploring expansion into the industrial 

sector, a move that would enable the company to secure 

stable and recurring income, thus increasing business 

resilience and reducing reliance on specific contracts. 

In doing so, NAPESCO aims to elevate its technical and 

professional standards to align with those of leading 

global oil and gas companies.



Environmental & Sustainability Services

Company Activities Overview

1.	 Cleaning of oil and petrochemical tanks and containers
2.	 Installation of fire alarm systems
3.	 Installation of firefighting systems and equipment
4.	 Installation of fire piping systems
5.	 General cleaning, industrial cleaning, and building 

maintenance services
6.	 Firefighting equipment and machinery
7.	 Paper compaction of all types
8.	 Metal processing, coating, coloring, and cleaning
9.	 Transportation of fresh water
10.	 Transportation of non-fresh (brackish or wastewater)
11.	 Soil testing and engineering materials analysis
12.	 Transportation of liquids, liquefied gases, or chemical 

materials
13.	 Treatment and disposal of non-hazardous waste
14.	 Sewage treatment and disposal
15.	 Separation and sorting of waste and metal scrap, and 

types of metals for use as raw materials
16.	 Importation of chemical materials
17.	 Environmental laboratories for water testing
18.	 Environmental laboratories for air testing
19.	 Environmental laboratories for biological testing
20.	 Treatment and disposal of hazardous waste
21.	 Treatment and disposal of non-hazardous waste
22.	 Transportation of solid and liquid waste
23.	 Testing and measurement of environmental indicators
24.	 Recruitment of specialized technical labor
25.	 Environmental consulting services
26.	 Ownership of intellectual property rights, including 

patents, trademarks, industrial designs, franchises, and 
other intangible rights, and their utilization or leasing 

to affiliated holding companies and other entities
27.	 Collection of hazardous waste
28.	 Collection of non-hazardous waste
29.	 Preparation and provision of technical, economic, 

evaluation, and environmental studies and 
consultations

30.	 Recruitment of administrative and general labor
31.	 Ownership of real estate and movable assets necessary 

to conduct business, within the limits permitted by 
law

32.	 Operation of renewable and alternative energy power 
plants

33.	 Maintenance of oil facilities, wells, oil refineries, and 
petrochemical plants

34.	 Safety and industrial security consulting services
35.	 Fire prevention consulting services
36.	 Technical consulting services
37.	 Experimental research and development in the fields 

of natural and engineering sciences
38.	 Retail sale of safety and security systems
39. 	 Retail sale of waste, scrap, and recyclable materials
40. 	 Wholesale of safety and security systems
41. 	 Consulting offices for physical and chemical testing 

and analysis
42. 	 Environmental laboratories for soil testing
43. 	 Establishment of renewable and alternative energy 

power plants
44.	 Painting and maintenance of oil pipelines
45.	 Processing and coating of machine-treated metals
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Oilfield Services

 General Company Activities 

1.	 Gas injection in oil fields
2.	 Transportation of fluids, liquefied gases, or chemical 

materials
3.	 Maintenance and repair of oil pipelines
4.	 Transportation of fresh water
5.	 Transportation of non-fresh (brackish or wastewater)
6.	 Importation of chemical materials
7.	 Recruitment of administrative and general labor
8.	 Recruitment of specialized technical labor
9.	 Ownership of intellectual property rights, including 

patents, trademarks, industrial designs, franchises, 
and other intangible rights, as well as their utilization 
and leasing to subsidiary holding companies or other 
entities

10.	 Ownership of real estate and movable assets 
necessary for conducting business, within the limits 
permitted by law

11.	 Coating and maintenance of oil pipelines
12.	 Services related to oil and gas extraction, excluding 

surveying services
13.	 Technical consulting services
14.	 Experimental research and development in the 

fields of natural and engineering sciences
15.	 Wholesale of industrial chemicals
16.	 Consulting offices for physical and chemical 

analysis and testing
17.	 Drilling of natural gas wells
18.	 Drilling of oil wells

1.	 Wholesale trade of waste, scrap, and recyclable 
materials, including collection, classification, 
disassembly, stripping, storage, delivery, and 
transportation

2. Buying and selling stocks and bonds on behalf of the 
company.

3. Exploiting the company›s available financial surpluses.

11
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CERTIFICATES
AND APPROVED
CATEGORIES



 
 
 
 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                    Certificate No.  
                                                                                                                                                                                                  IRQS/240301728  

 
To certify that the Environmental Management Systems of 

National Petroleum Services Company (NAPESCO) 
ADDRESS     

Shuaiba Industrial Area 
P.O Box 9801 , Ahmadi 61008 
Kuwait 
has been assessed and found conforming to the requirement of ISO 14001 : 2015 
 

INITIAL CERTIFICATION DATE  CURRENT DATE OF GRANTING  EXPIRY DATE 

October 03, 2018  October 02, 2024  October 01, 2027 

 
CERTIFICATION SCOPE 
  

    

Oil Field Services which includes Oil 
Well Cementing, Stimulation, Coiled 
Tubing, Nitrogen Services, Down Hole 
Tool Services 
 
Energy  and Sustainable Development 
Services such as HSE Consultancy , 
Monitoring & Testing , Waste 
Management of Hazardous & Non- 
Hazardous wastes, Fire Fighting 
Equipments & Fire Alarm Servicing / 
Maintenance and Halon Management 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                    Certificate No.  
                                                                                                                                                                                                   IRQS/240401729 

 
To certify that the Occupational Health And Safety  Management Systems of 

National Petroleum Services Company (NAPESCO) 
ADDRESS     

Shuaiba Industrial Area 
P.O Box 9801 , Ahmadi 61008 
Kuwait 
has been assessed and found conforming to the requirement of ISO 45001 : 2018 
 

INITIAL CERTIFICATION DATE  CURRENT DATE OF GRANTING  EXPIRY DATE 

October 03, 2018  October 02, 2024  October 01, 2027 

 
CERTIFICATION SCOPE 
  

    

Oil Field Services which includes Oil 
Well Cementing, Stimulation, Coiled 
Tubing, Nitrogen Services, Down Hole 
Tool Services 
 
Energy  and Sustainable Development 
Services such as HSE Consultancy , 
Monitoring & Testing , Waste 
Management of Hazardous & Non- 
Hazardous wastes, Fire Fighting 
Equipments & Fire Alarm Servicing / 
Maintenance and Halon Management 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                    Certificate No.  
                                                                                                                                                                                                  IRQS/240101727  

 
To certify that the Quality Management Systems of 

National Petroleum Services Company (NAPESCO) 
ADDRESS     

Shuaiba Industrial Area 
P.O Box 9801 , Ahmadi 61008 
Kuwait 
has been assessed and found conforming to the requirement of ISO 9001 : 2015 
 

INITIAL CERTIFICATION DATE  CURRENT DATE OF GRANTING  EXPIRY DATE 

October 03, 2018  October 02, 2024  October 01, 2027 

 
CERTIFICATION SCOPE 
  

    

Oil Field Services which includes Oil 
Well Cementing, Stimulation, Coiled 
Tubing, Nitrogen Services, Down Hole 
Tool Services 
 
Energy  and Sustainable Development 
Services such as HSE Consultancy , 
Monitoring & Testing , Waste 
Management of Hazardous & Non- 
Hazardous wastes, Fire Fighting 
Equipments & Fire Alarm Servicing / 
Maintenance and Halon Management 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

ISO CERTIFICATES
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EXCELENCE CERTIFICATES
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• Testing Laboratory TL-490

• Health & Safety Management System 

ISO 17025:2017

ISO 45001:2018

•	 Radiation License specific for Frac- Stor-ing 
using and transporting Radiation Source 

MINISTRY OF HEALTH

• Quality Management System 

ISO 9001:2015

•	 Environmental Monitoring Services Including 
Laboratory Testing Of Water, Soil and Air Samples 
and Eia 

ISO 14001:2015

15
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Sheikh Sabah Mohammad Abdulaziz Al Sabah
Chairman

Sheikh Hamad Jaber Al-Sabah
Member (Independent)

Ms. Ghada Eissa Khalaf
Member

Mr. Khalid Hamdan Al Saif
Member

Mr. Mohammad Fahad Alajmi
Member (Independent)

Mr. Muhaiman Ali Al-Behbehani
Vice Chairman & CEO

Mr. Sadoun Mohammad Ali
Member
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2024 was a pivotal year in 
NAPESCO’s journey, marked by 
strategic expansion, the acquisition 
of high-value contracts, and 
robust financial growth. These 
achievements reinforced the 
company’s leadership in the energy 
sector and underscored its 
unwavering commitment 
to excellence and 
sustainability.

Dear Shareholders of National Petroleum Services 
Company,
On my own behalf and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 
I am pleased to present to you the Annual Report of 
National Petroleum Services Company for the year 2024, 
along with the audited financial statements for the fiscal 
year ended on 31 December 2024. This report highlights 
the Company’s progress over the past year and the 
continued activation of its innovation strategy to realize 
a sustainable and comprehensive future. Through a 
series of strategic initiatives, the Company has reaffirmed 
its firm commitment to excellence, development, and 
sustainability. Reflecting on the accomplishments of 
2024, I would like to express the Board of Directors’, 
Executive Management’s, and all employees’ collective 
pride in what the Company has achieved. During the year, 
we placed strong emphasis on enhancing governance 
practices and creating long-term sustainable value for 
all stakeholders. Our combined efforts have resulted in 
remarkable outcomes that have further strengthened 
the Company’s leading position within the energy sector.

The year 2024 marked a significant milestone in the 
Company’s journey, highlighted by a series of qualitative 
achievements. Most notably, the successful acquisition 
of the Oil Projects Company has begun to yield tangible 
results, positively impacting the Company’s financial 
performance during the year. This milestone also 
reinforced the Company’s strategic direction toward 

regional expansion. In this context, the Board of Directors 
approved the establishment of subsidiaries in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emirates, 
following prequalification by two of the region’s most 
prominent clients ARAMCO and ADNOC. Particularly, the 
Company has advanced the development of Oil Services 
Technologies within its Oil Services Division, aiming to 
enhance operational efficiency and support the creation 
of a more sustainable business environment.

In light of an increasingly dynamic global landscape 
marked by unprecedented economic challenges, 
disruptions in supply chains, and complex geopolitical 
developments, NAPESCO remains firmly committed to 
upholding the highest ethical standards and principles 
of good governance. The Company’s agile and forward-
looking governance framework fosters transparency, 
accountability, and ethical conduct at all organizational 
levels. The Board of Directors, in close coordination with 
a dedicated executive management team, places strong 
emphasis on aligning strategic decisions with NAPESCO’s 
core humanitarian values—ultimately contributing to the 
effective advancement of shareholders’ interests.

We are pleased to express our pride and satisfaction with 
the Company’s exceptional achievements in 2024, which 
are the result of the relentless efforts and dedication 
of all our teams. It is also our pleasure to highlight the 
Company’s remarkable accomplishments in operational 

Board of
Directors’
Report
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processes during the fiscal year 2024, reflecting our 
unwavering commitment to creativity, efficiency, and 
sustainable growth across all areas of our business:

·	 Executed a five-year contract with Kuwait Oil 
Company for a “Long-Term Supply Agreement 
of Completion Equipment for Development 
Drilling & Workover Wells with Services”, 
valued at KD 11,954,006.

·	 Executed a five-year contract with Kuwait Oil 
Company for “Waste Management Services 
within North Kuwait Operational Areas”, 
amounting to KD 5,148,811.

·	 Executed a five-year contract with Kuwait Oil 
Company for “Waste Management Services 
within South & East Kuwait, Export, and 
Marine Operational Areas”, valued at KD 
5,323,404.

·	 Executed a four-year contract with Equate 
Company for the “Ambient Air Quality 
Monitoring Equipment”, totaling KD 130,000.

·	 Executed a two-year contract with the Ministry 
of Electricity and Water for the “Groundwater 
Quality Monitoring Program in Raudhatain 
and Umm Al-Aish Freshwater Aquifers, Stage 
Two”, valued at KD 114,523.

·	 Executed a five-year contract with Joint 
Operations for “Cementing and Associated 
Services for Drilling and Workover 
Operations”, worth KD 17,000,000.

·	 Executed a five-year contract with Joint 
Operations for the “Provision of Coiled 
Tubing & Associated Services”, valued at KD 
15,000,000.

·	 Increased the value of the existing “Cementing 
& Associated Services for Drilling & Workover 
Operations for Unconventional Services” 
contract with Kuwait Oil Company by KD 
13,720,000, with an extension of the contract 
period by 16 months.

·	 Increased the value of the existing “Cementing 
& Associated Services for Drilling & 

Workover Operations for Conventional 
Services” contract with Kuwait Oil Company by 
KD 7,120,000, with an extension of the contract 
period by 16 months.

·	 Increased the value of the existing “Provision 
of Coiled Tubing & Associated Services” 
contract with Kuwait Oil Company by KD 
5,024,063 to include a new service and 
extended the contract period by one year.

·	 Prequalification with a partner for a Joint 
Venture to provide engineering services and 
drilling fluid products to Kuwait Oil Company 
for both traditional and non-traditional project 
categories.

We are pleased to present a summary report on the 
Company’s financial statements for the fiscal year 
ended on 31 December 2024, as outlined below:

The Company recorded a net profit of KD 13,424,081 
in 2024, compared to KD 8,595,516 in 2023, reflecting 
a significant increase of 56.18%. Operational revenues 
rose to KD 41,028,898 in 2024, up from KD 39,522,799 
in 2023. Net Operational profit also witnessed a notable 
rise, reaching KD 13,182,314 in 2024 compared to KD 
10,872,181 in the previous year, an increase of 21.25%.

As we continue our journey toward the future, we remain 
steadfast in our commitment to shared values and a 
unified sense of purpose. These serve as the cornerstone 
of our path forward, guided by unwavering efforts to 
diversify revenue streams, reduce risk, and operate in 
alignment with sound governance practices and a long-
term sustainability strategy.

On my own behalf and on behalf of the Board of 
Directors, I would like to extend our sincere gratitude 
to our valued shareholders and stakeholders for their 
continued trust and support. I would also like to express 
my deep appreciation to my fellow Board members for 
their meaningful contributions, and to the executive 
management team for their exceptional leadership. 
Special thanks go to our dedicated employees, the true 
driving force behind NAPESCO’s continued success.

Sheikh Sabah Mohammad Abdulaziz Al Sabah
Chairman
 

A Yea r of  S tr ate g i c 
Grow th a nd Reg ional 

Bre a kthroug hs
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Introduction: 
 
Through its Board of Directors and Executive Management, National Petroleum Services Company remains 

committed to adopting best-in-class practices in governance, risk management, and the protection of 

shareholders' and stakeholders' rights. The Company has placed strong emphasis on cultivating a culture of 

governance and regulatory compliance, continuously enhancing its governance framework to establish 

sound and effective institutional values. National Petroleum Services Company has implemented a 

comprehensive suite of corporate policies and systems, regularly updating them as necessary, driven by its 

firm belief that the optimal application of governance practices delivers significant benefits. These include, 

but are not limited to, the enhancement of shareholder equity, the protection and maximization of 

stakeholder rights, and the strengthening of the Company’s ability to manage risks and crises effectively. 

The Company continues its journey of growth and advancement by reinforcing the principles of 

transparency, integrity, and proactive communication with all stakeholders. This approach aims to foster 

greater awareness and deeper understanding of governance requirements, embedding the governance 

framework into the Company’s culture. The Board of Directors affirms its unwavering commitment to keeping 

pace with the latest developments in communication and disclosure channels, ensuring that shareholders, 

investors, and stakeholders are consistently provided with timely, neutral, transparent, and equitable access 

to corporate updates and developments. 

 

National Petroleum Services Company reaffirms its commitment to full disclosure regarding its compliance 

with the governance requirements set forth in Volume Fifteen (Corporate Governance) of the Executive 

Regulations of Law No. 7 of 2010 concerning the Establishment of the Capital Markets Authority and the 

Regulation of Securities Activity, as amended. The Company shall read out and present  this disclosure to its 

shareholders at the Annual Ordinary General Assembly, as outlined below: 

 

1. First Rule: Building a Balanced Board of Directors Structure 
 
1-1  Board of Directors Formation Standards 
 

The Board of Directors has a well-balanced structure that is dedicated to achieving the shareholders' 

objectives and overseeing the company's executive management. It is appropriately sized to the company, 

enabling it to fulfill the company's strategic goals by ensuring that the executive management executes its 

responsibilities effectively. Furthermore, the Board ensures that the executive management enhances the 

company's competitiveness, achieves robust growth rates, and works towards maximizing profits. 

 

The Company is committed to maintaining a balanced and effective Board that comprises non-executive 

members with diverse expertise, positively impacting the Company’s overall performance. This diversity, in 

turn, helps strengthen the Company’s financial position and market share. Additionally, the Company 

ensures the inclusion of two independent members, in compliance with the provisions of the Executive 

Regulations of the Capital Markets Authority Law, specifically Volume Fifteen ("Corporate Governance"), 

Article 2.3. The Board members collectively bring extensive experience from various fields, including 

engineering, business administration, accounting, and finance, which enriches the decision-making process 
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on matters brought before the Board. Currently, the Board is composed of seven members. Below is a 

summary of the classifications, qualifications, and experiences of the Board members: 

 

Board of Directors Composition: 

 

Name 

Member 
Classification 

(Executive,  
Non-Executive, 
Independent), 

Board Secretary 

Academic Degree and Professional 
Experience 

Date of 
election/ 

appointment of 
the Board 
Secretary 

Sheikh Sabah 
Mohammad 

Abdulaziz AlSabah 

Chairman 
(Non-Executive) 

Bachelor’s degree in management and 
organization from Kuwait University - 

Experience in investment, industrial, and 
real estate sectors - Held the position of 
Chairman and CEO at United Industries 

Company. 

01/05/2023 

Mr. Muhaiman Ali 
AlBehbehani 

Deputy Chairman 
(CEO) 

Bachelor’s degree in mechanical 
engineering - Experience in the oil sector 

and public administration. 
01/05/2023 

Sheikh Hamad 
Jaber AlSabah 

Board Member 
(Independent) 

Certified Management Accountant (CMA) 
from the Institute of Management 

Accountants (IMA) - Bachelor’s degree in 
finance from Kuwait University - 

Experience in accounting auditing, public 
administration, and regulatory affairs. 

01/05/2023 

Mr. Khaled 
Hamdan AlSaif 

Board Member 
(Non-Executive) 

Master of Business Administration from 
Maastricht University, UK - Bachelor’s 

degree in electrical engineering - 
Experience in the oil sector. 

01/05/2023 

Mr. Sadoun 
Abdullah Hussein 

Ali 

Board Member 
(Non-Executive) 

Bachelor’s degree in financial service 
management and financial accounting from 
Ashland University, USA, and a Diploma in 

Commercial Banking from the Public 
Authority for Applied Education and 

Training. 

20/11/2023 

Ms. Ghadah Eissa 
Ahmad Khalaf 

Board Member 
(Non-Executive) 

Master’s degree in chemical engineering 
from Imperial College London and an MBA 

from the Tepper School of Business, 
Carnegie Mellon University, USA. 

01/05/2023 

Mr. Mohammad 
Fahad AlAjmi 

Board Member 
(Independent) 

MBA from the University of Hull, UK - 
Bachelor’s degree in engineering from 

Concordia University, Montreal, Canada - 
Over thirty years of experience in the oil 

industry. 

01/05/2023 

Mr. Sameh 
ElSayed Basha Board Secretary 

Master’s degree in international legal 
business transactions and logistics from 

the Arab Academy for Science, Technology 
and Maritime Transport, Alexandria, Egypt 

- Bachelor of Law from Ain Shams 
University, Egypt - Diploma in International 

Commercial Arbitration (ICA) - Certified 
Compliance Officer - Certified Governance 

Analyst (CCGO)- Experience in legal 
affairs and regulatory compliance. 

01/05/2023 
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1.2 Meetings Organization of Board of Directors 

 
The Board members are committed to dedicating adequate time to attend Board meetings. The Company 

ensures, through its secretary, that invitations to attend Board meetings, along with the relevant agenda 

documents, are sent well in advance no less than three business days prior to the meeting. This allows each 

Board member sufficient time to review and discuss the matters at hand. Below is a summary of the 

meetings held in 2024, along with the attendance of each member: 

 
Board of Directors’ meetings from 01/01/2024 To 31/12/2024 

Name of Member Description 

Meeting 
No. 
(1) 

Held on 
15/01 

Meeting 
No. 
(2) 

Held on 
07/03 

Meeting 
No. 
(3) 

Held on 
27/03 

Meeting 
No. 
(4) 

Held on 
14/05 

Meeting 
No. 
(5) 

Held on 
12/08 

Meeting 
No. 
(6) 

Held on 
22/09 

Meeting 
No. 
(7) 

Held on 
13/11 

Meeting 
No. 
(8) 

Held on 
25/12 

N
o.

 o
f 

M
ee

tin
gs

 

1. Sheikh Sabah 
Mohammad 
Abdulaziz 
AlSabah 

Chairman         8 

2. Mr. Muhaiman 
Ali AlBehbehani 

Deputy 
chairman         8 

3. Sheikh Hamad 
Jaber AlSabah Member         8 
4. Mr. Khaled 
Hamdan Alsaif Member         8 

5. Mr. Sadoun 
Abdullah Hussein 
Ali 

Member  Apology       7 

6. Ms. Ghadah 
Eissa Ahmad 
Khalaf 

Member Apology        7 

7. Mr. Mohammad 
Fahad AlAjmi Member Apology Apology    Apology   5 
8. Mr. Sameh 
Elsayed Basha Secretary         8 

 
1.3 Recording, Coordinating, and Archiving Meeting Minutes 

 
The Board Secretary plays a pivotal role in supporting the Board members by ensuring they have access to 

any information required, either in accordance with the Board's decisions or in consultation with the 

Chairman. The Secretary also ensures that invitations for meetings, along with all relevant agenda 

documents, are sent at least three business days in advance. In addition to this, the Secretary assists the 

Chairman in preparing the Board meeting agenda and is responsible for recording the minutes of the 

meetings. The Secretary ensures that the results of any voting processes are properly documented, and that 

all attendees sign the minutes. These records, along with all relevant documents and instruments, are 

maintained in an organized manner to facilitate quick and efficient access by any Board member at any time. 

Furthermore, the Board Secretary follows up on Board decisions by coordinating with the Executive 

Management (CEO) to communicate those decisions to all relevant corporate departments. This 

coordination also ensures that the Board is kept informed of any new developments. 
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1.4 Declarations of Independent Board Members  
 
As for independent members, the Company ensures that the Board of Directors includes two independent 

members, in compliance with the provisions of the Executive Rules of the Capital Markets Authority Law, 

particularly Volume Fifteen on 'Corporate Governance,' Articles 2.2 and 2.3. Furthermore, the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee periodically monitors the independence of independent board members by 

reviewing and discussing their declarations at committee meetings. The committee verifies that each 

independent member continues to meet the criteria for independence as outlined in the aforementioned 

articles, and that they possess the technical qualifications, experience, and skills relevant to the Company’s 

operations. Attached are the Declarations of Independent Members. 

 
2. Second Rule: Proper Definition of Roles and Responsibilities 

 
2.1 Roles and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors 

 
The Board of Directors consistently strives to serve the best interests of the Company’s shareholders 

through the effective supervision and oversight of executive management, ensuring the implementation of 

the Company’s strategy and objectives, and monitoring performance in accordance with established plans. 

This is achieved while maintaining a clear separation between the roles of the Board of Directors and the 

Executive Management through the application of governance principles, and by clearly defining the duties, 

roles, and responsibilities of both parties. During the year, the Board of Directors reviewed and updated the 

Company’s strategy and risk appetite, including future plans and expansion initiatives currently underway, as 

disclosed. The Board has also remained committed to embedding institutional values across all levels of the 

organization, with continuous efforts aimed at achieving strategic objectives, enhancing performance levels, 

and ensuring full compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and, in particular, governance requirements. 

The Board has adopted a comprehensive set of policies, regulations, systems, and procedures, which are 

effectively and consistently applied throughout the Company. This stems from a belief that governance 

should not merely be seen as regulatory compliance, but rather as an essential part of the Company's 

institutional culture and core business philosophy. The key roles and responsibilities of the Board of 

Directors include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
－ Approving the Company’s general strategic goals, plans, and policies. 

－ Approving the annual projected budgets, as well as the quarterly and annual financial statements. 

－ Overseeing the Company’s major capital expenditures, and the acquisition and disposal of assets. 

－ Verifying the Company’s compliance with policies and procedures to ensure adherence to applicable 

internal regulations and rules. 

－ Ensuring the accuracy and integrity of all reportable information in line with the Company’s 

disclosure and transparency policies, procedures, and systems. 

－ The Board of Directors is also in the process of approving the Strategic Sustainability Policy to 

ensure alignment with international and local standards, thereby contributing to the Company’s 

comprehensive corporate strategy. 
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Furthermore, the policies and procedures approved by the Board of Directors, which define the Board’s 

duties and responsibilities towards the Company’s shareholders as well as the executive management’s 

responsibilities towards the Board, include, as previously mentioned, the job descriptions of the Board 

members, clearly specifying the tasks and responsibilities assigned to each member. They also incorporate 

the authority matrix, outlining the powers of the Board of Directors, executive management, and committees, 

which is regularly tracked and updated in accordance with the relevant supervisory instructions, laws, and 

regulations. 

 
 Executive Management  

 
The Company has a qualified team comprising members of the executive management. An approved 

delegation of authority guide is in place, covering all Company sectors. The tasks of the executive 

management include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 

 Implementing all internal policies, regulations, and systems approved by the Board of Directors. 

 Executing the annual strategy and plan as approved by the Board of Directors. 

 Preparing periodic financial and non-financial reports on the Company’s activity progress in light of 

its plans and goals, and presenting such reports to the Board of Directors. 

 Managing daily operations and running the Company’s activities. 

 Actively participating in building and developing the Company’s ethical values. 

 
2.2 Achievements of the Board of Directors 

 
In line with the Board of Directors’ responsibilities namely achieving optimal financial and operational results 

and ensuring the effective implementation of the Company’s strategic plan the Board has accomplished 

several key achievements during its current term in the fiscal year ended 31st December 2024. These 

achievements are reflected in the positive outcomes and tangible indicators across various financial, 

marketing, and technical fields. The Board’s main achievements are summarized as follows: 

 
 Approval of the Company’s annual projected budget for the year 2025. 

 Approval of the Company’s five-year plan for the period 2025–2029. 

 Approval of the Company’s strategy for regional expansion within the Arabian Gulf region. 

 Approval of the incorporation of a subsidiary in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and disclosure thereof. 

 Review and approval of the action plan for the newly incorporated subsidiary in the Kingdom of 

Saudi Arabia. 

 Review and approval of the organizational structure, policies, and procedures for the subsidiary to be 

incorporated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 

 Approval of the progress report and the annual financial statements for the fiscal year ended 31st 

December 2024. 

 Follow up and approval of integrity of the Board of Directors’ disclosures in accordance with the 

approved disclosure and transparency policies and regulations. 
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 Monitoring and approval of the performance of board members and executive management through 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). 

 Monitoring and approval of updates to the policies and procedures of corporate departments. 

 Monitoring and approval of the Board of Directors' training plan and development of its members. 

 Review and discussion of the company’s tenders and bids. 

 Monitoring and approval of the company’s regional expansion strategy, including the proposal to 

incorporate a subsidiary in the UAE. 

 Continuous monitoring of the company’s organizational structure. 

 Review of the evaluation of the company’s internal control systems for the fiscal year ended 31st 

December 2024. 

 Review of the evaluation and effectiveness of the actions of the Board of Directors and its 

committees. 

 Review of the internal control and risk management systems, in collaboration with external 

consultancy firms Grant Thornton Economic and Administrative Consultancies, represented by Mr. 

Hazem Al-Ajez (internal audit services) and Mr. Abdullatif Mohamed Al-Aiban (risk management 

services), ensuring the efficiency, sufficiency, and compliance of these systems with the company’s 

risk appetite, through ongoing coordination with executive management. 

 
2.3 Formation of Sub-committees of the Board of Directors 

 
The Board of Directors has established its committees in accordance with the governance rules and 
guidelines set forth by the Capital Markets Authority for the formation of such committees. The board has 
constituted the following four committees: 
 
1- 
 

Name of Committee Date of Formation Committee Duration No. of Members 

Audit and Risk Management 
Committee 

Date of New Formation Committee Duration No. of Members 

02/05/2023 3 3 

Committee Members 

Sr. Name Position Classification 

1 Sheikh Hamad Jaber AlSabah Chairman Independent Member 

2 Ms. Ghadah Eissa Ahmad 
Khalaf Member Non-Executive Member 

3 Mr. Mekki Zacharia Member Non-Executive Member 

4 Mr. Sameh ElSayed Saleh Board Secretary - 

Audit and Risk Management 
Committee 

Date of New Re-Formation Committee Duration No. of Members 

20/11/2023 3 3 

Committee Members 

Sr. Name Position Classification 

1 Sheikh Hamad Jaber AlSabah Chairman Independent member 

2 Ms. Ghadah Eissa Ahmad 
Khalaf Member Non-executive member 

3 Mr. Sadoun Abdullah Ali Member Non-executive member 

4 Mr. Sameh ElSayed Saleh Board Secretary - 

26

Annual Report 2024



Governance Report 8

Committee Tasks 

 Review periodical financial statements and reports, engage in discussions with the 
relevant executive management members, and provide opinions, proposals, and 
recommendations prior to their presentation to the Board of Directors. 

 Evaluate the adequacy of the applied internal control systems. 
 Supervise the internal audit department and assess the efficiency of its performance in 

terms of implementing the relevant requirements set by the Board of Directors. 
 Review and approve the internal audit plan, encompassing all corporate departments and 

units. 
 Review the internal auditor's report, propose corrective measures for any identified issues, 

and follow up on the resolution of any comments observed across various departments. 
 Review the internal control report (ICR) and provide necessary recommendations to the 

executive management, subsequently referring the matter to the Board of Directors for 
review and feedback. 

 Recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment or re-appointment of the external 
auditor, determine their fees, and assess their independence. 

 Revise and update the company’s powers matrix. 
 Review and assess the company’s risk register. 
 Review the risk assessment report and recommend any necessary actions. 
 Prepare, review, and revise the company’s risk management and risk appetite strategies 

and policies prior to board approval, ensuring that their implementation aligns with the 
company's business nature and scale. 

 Discuss the risk study related to the company’s acquisition of stocks in an unlisted 
shareholding company with the external advisor and provide relevant recommendations to 
the Board of Directors. 

 Review the internal auditor’s evaluation. 
 
 Meetings of Audit and Risk Management Committee  
 

Name of member Position 
No. of Meetings: (8) Meetings 
From 01/01/2024 to 31/12/2024 

1 
08/01 

2 
24/03 

3 
27/03 

4 
09/05 

5 
05/08 

6 
18/09 

7 
07/11 

8 
15/12 

Sheikh Hamad Jaber 
AlSabah 

Chairman 
Independent         

Ms. Ghadah Eissa 
Ahmad Khalaf Member         

Mr. Sadoun Abdullah 
Ali Member         

Mr. Sameh ElSayed 
Saleh Board Secretary         

Committee 
Achievements 

 Meet with the external auditor to review the progress and annual financial statements prior to 
their presentation to the Board of Directors. 

 Meet with the internal auditor to discuss the reports submitted by the internal audit 
department regarding the findings from the audit of corporate departments and activities. 

 Approve the annual internal audit plan. 
 Prepare, review, and revise risk management strategies, policies, and the risk appetite 

before submitting them for board approval, ensuring their implementation aligns with the 
nature and scale of corporate activities. 

 Ensure that sufficient resources and systems are available for effective risk management. 
 Review the evaluation of the internal auditor’s performance. 
 Review the evaluation of the corporate internal control systems for the fiscal year 2024. 
 Discuss the risk study related to corporate transactions. 
 Discuss recommendations regarding the renewal or non-renewal of the external auditor’s 

appointment. 
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2- 
 

Name of Committee Date of Formation Committee Duration No. of Members 

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 

Date of New Formation Committee Duration No. of Members 

02/05/2023 3 3 

Committee Members 

Sr. Name Position Classification 

1 Sheikh Sabah Mohammad 
AlSabah Chairman Non-Executive Member 

2 Mr. Khaled Hamdan AlSaif Member Non-Executive Member 

3 Mr. Mohammad Fahad AlAjmi Member Independent Member 

4 Mr. Sameh ElSayed Saleh Board Secretary - 

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 

Date of New Re-Formation Committee Duration No. of Members 

20/11/2023 3 3 

Committee Members 

Sr. Name Position Classification 

1 Sheikh Sabah Mohammad 
AlSabah Chairman Non-Executive Member 

2 Mr. Khaled Hamdan AlSaif Member Non-Executive Member 

3 Mr. Mohammad Fahad AlAjmi Member Independent Member 

4 Mr. Sameh ElSayed Saleh Board Secretary - 

Committee Tasks 

 Recommend the acceptance of appointments for executive management positions. 
 Establish a clear remuneration policy for the Board of Directors and executive 

management members. 
 Determine a performance appraisal mechanism for the entire Board of Directors, as well 

as for each individual board member and the executive management. 
 Review the evaluation mechanisms for corporate staff remuneration. 
 Prepare and present the governance report to the Board of Directors. 
 Assess the independence of independent board members. 

 
 Meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 

Name of member Position 
No. of Meetings: 1 Meeting 

From 01/01/2024 to 31/12/2024 
20/03/2024 

Sheikh Sabah 
Mohammad AlSabah Chairman  

Mr. Khaled Hamdan 
AlSaif Member  

Mr. Mohammad Fahad 
AlAjmi Member  

Mr. Sameh ElSayed 
Saleh 

Board 
Secretary  

Committee 
Achievements 

 Review the remuneration of board members in accordance with the board-approved 
recommendation policies. 

 Assess the executive management's appraisal and remuneration in line with the 
executive management remuneration policy. 

 Evaluate the independence of independent board members. 
 Review and approve the annual governance report, with recommendations to the Board 

of Directors for discussion and approval. 
 Discuss annual salary increments for company staff. 
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3- 
 

Name of Committee Date of Re-Formation Committee Duration No. of Members 

Investment and Strategy 
Committee 

Date of New Formation Committee Duration No. of Members 

02/05/2023 3 3 

Committee Members 

Sr. Name Position Classification 

1 Sheikh Sabah Mohammad 
AlSabah Chairman Non-Executive Member 

2 Mr. Muhaiman Ali AlBehbehani Member Non-Executive Member 

3 Mr. Khaled Hamdan AlSaif Member Executive Member 

4 Mr. Mekki Zacharia Member Non-Executive Member 

5 Mr. Sameh ElSayed Saleh Board Secretary - 

Investment and Strategy 
Committee 

Date of New Re-Formation Committee Duration No. of Members 

20/11/2023 3 3 

Committee Members 

Sr. Name Position Classification 

1 Sheikh Sabah Mohammad 
AlSabah Chairman Non-Executive Member 

2 Mr. Muhaiman Ali AlBehbehani Member Executive Member 

3 Sheikh Hamad Jaber AlSabah Member Independent Member 

4 Mr. Sameh ElSayed Saleh Board Secretary - 

Committee Tasks 
 Analyse the market, develop strategies related to company activities, and present 

recommendations to the Board of Directors. 
 Evaluate investment opportunities presented by executive management, provide advice, 

and make recommendations to the Board of Directors. 
 
 
 Meetings of Investment and Strategy Committee  

 

Name of Member Position 

No. of Meetings: 1 Meeting 
From 01/01/2024 to 31/12/2024 

22/12/2024 

Sheikh Sabah 
Mohammad AlSabah Chairman  

Mr. Muhaiman Ali 
AlBehbehani Member  

Sheikh Hamad Jaber 
AlSabah Member  

Mr. Sameh ElSayed 
Saleh 

Board 
Secretary  

Committee achievements 

 Recommend the increase of National Petroleum Services Company’s 
holding in its unlisted subsidiary, United Oil Projects Company K.S.C. 
(Closed), through the purchase of 2,160,000 shares. Although the 
transaction is not considered fundamental to the value of the shares, the 
committee determined that the acquisition and increased holding would 
provide long-term benefits and help preserve the value of the company's 
shares and therefore recommended referring the matter to the Board of 
Directors. 
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4- 
 

Name of Committee Date of Re-Formation Committee Duration No. of Members 

Budget Committee 
Date of New Formation Committee Duration No. of Members 

02/05/2023 3 3 

Committee Members 

Sr. Name Position Classification 

1 Sheikh Hamad Jaber AlSabah Chairman Independent Member 

2 Ms. Ghadah Eissa Khalaf Member Non-Executive Member 

3 Mr. Mekki Zacharia Member Non-Executive Member 

4 Mr. Sameh ElSayed Saleh Board Secretary - 

Budget Committee 
Date of New Re-Formation Committee Duration No. of Members 

20/11/2023 3 3 

Committee Members 

Sr. Name Position Classification 

1 Sheikh Hamad Jaber AlSabah Chairman Independent Member 

2 Ms. Ghadah Eissa Khalaf Member Non-Executive Member 

3 Mr. Sadoun Abdullah Ali Member Non-Executive Member 

4 Mr. Sameh ElSayed Saleh Board Secretary - 

Committee Tasks 

 Review the corporate five-year plan and make recommendations to the Board of 
Directors. 

 Discuss the annual budget and make recommendations to the Board of Directors. 
 Review the company's overall performance and the detailed performance of corporate 

sectors and discuss deviations from the action plan and projected budget. 
 
 
 Meetings of the Budget Committee 
 

Name of member Position 
No. of Meetings: (5) Meetings 
From 01/01/2024 to 31/12/2024 

1 
08/01 

2 
09/05 

3 
05/08 

4 
07/11 

5 
15/12 

Sheikh Hamad 
Jaber AlSabah 

Chairman 
Independent      

Ms. Ghadah 
Eissa Khalaf Member      

Mr. Sadoun 
Abdullah Ali Member      

Mr. Sameh 
ElSayed Saleh Board Secretary      

Committee 
Achievements 

 Review the corporate five-year plan for 2025–2029. 
 Review the corporate projected budget for the fiscal year 2025. 
 Review the company's performance on a progressive basis and compare the interim financial 

statements to the projected budget at the end of each financial period to ensure there are no 
fundamental deviations from the approved budget for the fiscal year. 
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2.4 Summary of Application of the Requirements for Board Members' Access to Accurate and 

Timely Data and Information: 
 
The Board of Directors has approved a procedural guide that ensures board members have access to 

accurate and timely information, in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. This guide 

outlines the mechanisms for presenting information to the Board, as well as the procedures and 

obligations of members to maintain the confidentiality of any information acquired during the course of 

their duties. For instance, the board secretary ensures that all agenda-related documents are 

circulated to board members at least three days in advance of any board meeting, allowing sufficient 

time for members to review the items for discussion. In the event that a board member raises inquiries 

regarding matters not available during the meeting or regarding new developments, the secretary 

records the member’s requests and inquiries in the minutes. The secretary then coordinates with the 

executive management to provide the relevant information for presentation to the Board, as requested. 

 
3. Third Rule: Selection of Qualified Individuals for Membership on the Board of Directors and 

Executive Management. 
 
3.1 Summary of the Requirements for the Formation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee: 
 
The Board of Directors has formed the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with 

the governance rules set forth in Article 1.4 of the fifteenth volume of Corporate Governance. The 

committee is composed of three members, including one independent member and two non-executive 

members. The committee's charter outlines its tasks and responsibilities. The committee is tasked with 

the following, including but not limited to: 

 

 Establish a clear policy for the remuneration of members of the Board of Directors and executive 

management. 

 Solicit and review applications for executive positions as required and thoroughly evaluate and assess 

such applications. 

 Define and outline the various categories of remuneration for staff, including performance-related 

compensation and end-of-service indemnities. 

 Ensure that the independence of independent members is maintained and has not lapsed. 

 Prepare an annual governance report detailing the total remuneration provided to the members of the 

Board of Directors, executive management, and directors, including cash amounts, benefits, or 

privileges of any nature. This report will be presented to the Board of Directors and subsequently to 

the General Assembly of shareholders for approval. 

 Outline the mechanisms for the performance appraisal of the Board as a whole, as well as the 

individual members of the Board of Directors and executive management. 

 Ensure that remuneration is in compliance with the approved remuneration policy. 
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 Review the corporate human resources policies and any relevant amendments prior to their 

presentation to the Board of Directors. 

 

3.2 Report on Remuneration and Incentives for the Members of the Board of Directors, Executive 
Management, and Directors 

 
 The Board members receive a cash amount (basic remuneration), which is approved by the general 

assembly for the previous fiscal year. This basic remuneration is disclosed in the annual report. In 

addition to the basic remuneration, annual committee remuneration is provided to Board members who 

serve on any of the board committees. These committee remunerations, also disclosed in the annual 

report, are determined using the same principles as the basic remuneration. The remuneration paid to 

the Board of Directors is directly linked to the performance of the company and the Board, in alignment 

with the key performance indicators (KPIs) set by the company. 

 

 For the executive management, the Board of Directors believes that a combination of a fixed salary and 

a performance-based incentive effectively supports the company in attracting and retaining key talent. 

Additionally, the executive management is eligible for incentives tied to the achievement of shareholder 

value, with a portion of the incentive being contingent upon performance outcomes. 

 

 In line with the company’s commitment to maintaining the highest standards of transparency, in 

accordance with leading practices and corporate governance regulations, a detailed report has 

been prepared outlining all remunerations paid to the members of the Board of 

Directors and executive management. Below is a summary of the remunerations for 

both the Board members and executive management: 

 
Remunerations and Benefits Report 

 
Remunerations and Benefits of Board Members 

 
 

Total 
number of 
Members 

Remuneration and Benefits through parent company Remunerations and Benefits through subsidiaries 
Fixed 

Remunerations and 
Benefits (KD) 

Variable Remunerations and 
Benefits (KD) 

Fixed Remunerations and 
Benefits (KD) 

Variable Remunerations and 
Benefits (KD) 

Medical insurance Annual 
Remuneration 

Committee 
Remuneration Medical 

insurance 

Monthly 
salaries 

(total 
during the 

year) 

Annual 
Remuneration 

Committee 
Remuneration 

7 1300 169,381 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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 Review the corporate human resources policies and any relevant amendments prior to their 

presentation to the Board of Directors. 

 

3.2 Report on Remuneration and Incentives for the Members of the Board of Directors, Executive 
Management, and Directors 

 
 The Board members receive a cash amount (basic remuneration), which is approved by the general 

assembly for the previous fiscal year. This basic remuneration is disclosed in the annual report. In 

addition to the basic remuneration, annual committee remuneration is provided to Board members who 

serve on any of the board committees. These committee remunerations, also disclosed in the annual 

report, are determined using the same principles as the basic remuneration. The remuneration paid to 

the Board of Directors is directly linked to the performance of the company and the Board, in alignment 

with the key performance indicators (KPIs) set by the company. 

 

 For the executive management, the Board of Directors believes that a combination of a fixed salary and 

a performance-based incentive effectively supports the company in attracting and retaining key talent. 

Additionally, the executive management is eligible for incentives tied to the achievement of shareholder 

value, with a portion of the incentive being contingent upon performance outcomes. 

 

 In line with the company’s commitment to maintaining the highest standards of transparency, in 

accordance with leading practices and corporate governance regulations, a detailed report has 

been prepared outlining all remunerations paid to the members of the Board of 

Directors and executive management. Below is a summary of the remunerations for 

both the Board members and executive management: 

 
Remunerations and Benefits Report 

 
Remunerations and Benefits of Board Members 

 
 

Total 
number of 
Members 

Remuneration and Benefits through parent company Remunerations and Benefits through subsidiaries 
Fixed 

Remunerations and 
Benefits (KD) 

Variable Remunerations and 
Benefits (KD) 

Fixed Remunerations and 
Benefits (KD) 

Variable Remunerations and 
Benefits (KD) 

Medical insurance Annual 
Remuneration 

Committee 
Remuneration Medical 

insurance 

Monthly 
salaries 

(total 
during the 

year) 

Annual 
Remuneration 

Committee 
Remuneration 

7 1300 169,381 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Governance Report 14

 
Total remunerations and benefits provided to the five senior executives who received the highest remuneration, in addition to the Chief 

Executive Officer and the Finance Manager 
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5 374,436 5,270 12,700 19,200 19,800 22,500 256,880 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
 
3.3 It is noted that there have been no significant deviations from the remuneration policy approved by the 

Board of Directors. The governance report, including the details of remunerations and benefits, is presented 

periodically to the company's shareholders at the annual general assembly for their approval on an annual 

basis. 

 
4. Fourth Rule: Integrity of Financial Reports  

 
4.1 First: Commitments Regarding Financial Reports 
 

In light of the commitment of the Board of Directors and executive management to uphold the integrity 

and accuracy of financial reports, the company strives to ensure that its financial position is accurately 

represented. This commitment enhances the company’s credibility and fosters greater trust among 

existing shareholders and potential investors in the data and information provided by the company. 

 
The Board of Directors and executive management each provide written representations confirming 

the accuracy and integrity of the prepared financial reports. Attached herewith are the written 
representations affirming that the data contained in the financial reports have been prepared in 

accordance with the international accounting standards approved by the Capital Markets Authority. 

Furthermore, these reports accurately reflect all financial aspects of the company, including 

operational data and results, and ensure that the information presented is fair and properly disclosed. 

 
4.2 Second: Summary of the Application of the Requirements for Forming the Audit Committee 

 
In alignment with the Board of Directors’ commitment to fostering a culture of compliance within the 

company and ensuring the integrity and accuracy of its financial reports, as well as the sufficiency and 

effectiveness of its internal controls, the Board established an Audit Committee and approved its 

charter. This is in accordance with the governance requirements outlined in Article 6-5 of the fifteenth 

volume of (Corporate Governance) in the executive regulations of the Capital Markets Authority. 
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Total remunerations and benefits provided to the five senior executives who received the highest remuneration, in addition to the Chief 

Executive Officer and the Finance Manager 
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5 374,436 5,270 12,700 19,200 19,800 22,500 256,880 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
 
3.3 It is noted that there have been no significant deviations from the remuneration policy approved by the 

Board of Directors. The governance report, including the details of remunerations and benefits, is presented 

periodically to the company's shareholders at the annual general assembly for their approval on an annual 

basis. 

 
4. Fourth Rule: Integrity of Financial Reports  

 
4.1 First: Commitments Regarding Financial Reports 
 

In light of the commitment of the Board of Directors and executive management to uphold the integrity 

and accuracy of financial reports, the company strives to ensure that its financial position is accurately 

represented. This commitment enhances the company’s credibility and fosters greater trust among 

existing shareholders and potential investors in the data and information provided by the company. 

 
The Board of Directors and executive management each provide written representations confirming 

the accuracy and integrity of the prepared financial reports. Attached herewith are the written 
representations affirming that the data contained in the financial reports have been prepared in 

accordance with the international accounting standards approved by the Capital Markets Authority. 

Furthermore, these reports accurately reflect all financial aspects of the company, including 

operational data and results, and ensure that the information presented is fair and properly disclosed. 

 
4.2 Second: Summary of the Application of the Requirements for Forming the Audit Committee 

 
In alignment with the Board of Directors’ commitment to fostering a culture of compliance within the 

company and ensuring the integrity and accuracy of its financial reports, as well as the sufficiency and 

effectiveness of its internal controls, the Board established an Audit Committee and approved its 

charter. This is in accordance with the governance requirements outlined in Article 6-5 of the fifteenth 

volume of (Corporate Governance) in the executive regulations of the Capital Markets Authority. 
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Further details on the formation and accomplishments of the committee are presented in the previous 

section. 

 
4.3 Third: There is no conflict between the recommendations of the Audit Committee and the 

decisions made by the Board of Directors. 
 

4.4 Fourth: Concerning the external auditor’s independence and neutrality, the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee shall: 
 

－ Review the proposed scope, approach, and plan for the external auditor’s work, ensuring 

coordination between the external audit and internal audit functions. 

 

－ Supervise the external auditor's performance to ensure that no services have been provided to the 

company beyond those required for the external audit. 

 
－ Make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the appointment or re-appointment of 

the external auditor or propose their replacement if necessary. Additionally, propose the auditor's 

fees and review the auditor's letter of appointment, ensuring that the auditor is registered in the 

special register of the Capital Markets Authority and complies with all conditions outlined in the 

Authority's decision regarding the auditor registration system. 

 

－ Periodically assess the external auditor’s independence, both before and after appointment, 

ensuring that the auditor has not performed any tasks outside of their assigned duties that may 

impact their independence, in compliance with auditing standards. 

 

－ Discuss any challenges or obstacles faced by the external auditor, including any restrictions on the 

auditor's scope of work or access to necessary information, as well as any potential conflicts with 

management. 

 
5. Fifth Rule: Establishment of Effective Risk Management and Internal Control Systems 

 
5.1 First: Berif Statement on the Application of the Requirements for the Constitution of the 

Independent Risk Management Department/Office/Unit. 
 
The Risk Management Department is responsible for implementing the company’s risk policy, 

preparing periodic reports on the nature of the company’s risks, and presenting these reports to the 

Audit and Risk Management Committee. Additionally, the department regularly updates the company’s 

risk register and submits it for review by the committee. To further enhance its risk management 

capabilities, the company has engaged an external consultancy firm, Grant Thornton Economic and 

Administrative Consultancy, represented by Mr. Abdullatif Mohamed Al-Aiban, to provide specialized 

risk management services aimed at improving business efficiency. The staff within the Risk 

Management Department operate independently, as they report directly to the Audit and Risk 

Management Committee of the Board of Directors, in accordance with the approved organizational 

structure and in compliance with governance regulations. 
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5.2 Second: Brief on Application of the Formation Requirements of the Risk Management 
Committee 
 
 
The Board of Directors has also established the Audit and Risk Management Committee in 

accordance with the governance rules outlined in the fifteenth volume of the 'Corporate Governance' 

section of the Executive Rules of the Capital Markets Authority. The details regarding the committee's 

formation and achievements are provided in a previous section. 

 

5.3 Third: Brief on Internal Control Systems  
 

－ Approved policies and procedures covering all key activities and operations of the company and its 

departments. 

－ A comprehensive organizational structure, detailed and approved by the Board of Directors, 

encompassing all corporate sectors and departments. 

－ Approved job descriptions covering all corporate staff members. 

－ Regulations, approved by the Board of Directors, governing all board committees in line with the 

governance rules. 

－ Policies, approved by the Board of Directors, addressing all governance rule requirements. 

－ A financial and administrative powers matrix, approved by the Board of Directors, specifying the 

powers of different parties and covering all key operations. 

－ An integrated system covering key operations. 

－ Oversight by multiple independent parties, including internal departments (internal audit, quality and 

safety, and control compliance departments and (external parties) external audit. 

 
5.4 Fourth: Brief Statement on the Application of the Requirements for the Constitution of the 

Internal Audit Department/Office/Unit. 
 

The Company has established an effective Internal Audit Department, which operates under a 

contract with an independent external firm (Grant Thornton Economic and Administrative Consultancy 

Mr. Hazem Al-Ajez) to perform internal audit activities and provide support to company’s internal audit 

department. The Internal Audit Department enjoys full technical and administrative independence, as it 

reports directly to the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors. Its 

responsibilities include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
－ Assessing the company's potential risks to develop a risk-based audit plan and presenting it to the 

Audit and Risk Management Committee for approval. 

－ Conducting audits that cover all corporate operations and activities in accordance with the audit plan 

approved by the Audit and Risk Management Committee, to evaluate the effectiveness of internal 

controls. 

－ Performing quarterly reviews to ensure that the executive management has implemented the agreed 

corrective actions identified in internal audit reports. 

－ Presenting all audit findings to the Audit and Risk Management Committee and discussing them in 

the presence of executive management representatives. 
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－ Carrying out any special assignments delegated by the Audit and Risk Management Committee. 

 
6. Sixth Rule: Promoting Professional Conduct and Ethical Values 

 
6.1 First: Brief on the Work Charter Encompassing Standards and Guidelines for Professional 

Conduct and Ethical Values 
 
The company represented by the Board of Directors, executive management, and all staff firmly 

believes that professional conduct and adherence to ethical values are among the most critical factors 

contributing to its success and the achievement of its objectives. In line with this commitment, the 

Board of Directors has approved a policy that defines the company’s professional and ethical 

standards, along with the specific responsibilities of the company itself, the Board of Directors, 

executive management, and all employees. The policy also establishes that all parties are responsible 

for reporting any observed unlawful or unsafe activities. Members of the Board of Directors, executive 

management, and all staff are required to uphold these standards in the performance of their duties, 

regardless of their location or working conditions. 

 
Upon commencement of their duties, all staff members of National Petroleum Services Company, 

including the Board of Directors, are required to adhere to the Professional Charter, which outlines the 

applicable standards and behaviors to be maintained throughout their work. The professional behavior 

rules and standards, as approved by the Board of Directors, are designed to provide guidance on 

ethical issues and establish proper conduct to mitigate potential operational risks, thereby fostering a 

clear, integrated, and transparent work environment. Compliance with this policy is mandatory for all 

employees across the company. 

 
6.2 Second: Policies and Mechanisms for Mitigating Conflict of Interest 

 
The company has established a Conflict of Interest Policy to ensure the implementation of appropriate 

measures for identifying, addressing, and efficiently managing actual, potential, and anticipated 

conflicts of interest. This policy ensures that the Board of Directors appropriately handles all cases of 

conflict of interest, with all decisions taken solely in the best interests of the company. It forms a core 

part of the company's firm commitment to maintaining integrity, fairness, and transparency in dealing 

with all relevant parties. The policy outlines the rules for managing conflicts of interest, defines the 

concept and scope of conflict of interest, identifies the parties whose interests may conflict with those 

of the company, and clarifies the roles of the Board of Directors, executive management, compliance 

and internal audit departments, and the general assembly in managing such conflicts. It also details 

the procedures for handling conflict of interest cases and the mechanisms for disclosure. 

 
Some Responsibilities of Board Members: 

 
1. The Board of Directors is fully responsible for ensuring compliance with proper standards and 

mechanisms designed to prevent or mitigate conflicts of interest. 

2. Each board member is required to disclose any direct or indirect personal interest in the company to 

the Board of Directors on an annual basis. A member with such an interest shall refrain from 

participating in any discussions or voting related to the relevant decision. 
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3. A board member is prohibited from participating in discussions or voting on any matter that may 

involve a conflict of interest, whether direct or indirect, which could impair their ability to offer an 

unbiased opinion or effectively carry out their assigned duties. 

 
Some Responsibilities of Executive Management: 
 

1. Executive management members shall not engage in any decisions or tasks that involve a direct or 

indirect personal interest in the company, particularly if such interests may impair their ability to 

effectively carry out their assigned duties in a manner that serves the best interests of the company. 

All executive management members are required to adhere strictly to the terms of this policy. 

2. Executive management members are prohibited from undertaking any work for third parties, whether 

compensated or not, without prior approval from the Board of Directors. Such approval will only be 

granted after confirming that the external work will not create a conflict of interest that could affect 

their capacity to fulfil their responsibilities to the company. 

 
7. Seventh Rule: Accurate and Timely Disclosure and Transparency 

 
7.1 First: Mechanisms for accurate and transparent presentation and disclosure that specify the 

aspects, fields, and characteristics of disclosure. 
 
Compliance with transparency standards is crucial to fostering shareholders' trust. Therefore, the 

company adheres to its disclosure and transparency policy, ensuring compliance with all relevant 

laws, regulations, and guidelines issued by regulatory authorities at the appropriate times. This reflects 

the company's strong belief in the significance of transparency in enhancing shareholder and 

stakeholder trust while maintaining its reputation in the market. 

 

In line with compliance with disclosure and transparency laws and regulations issued by the 

competent supervisory bodies, the company ensures the accurate and timely disclosure of its financial 

statements, profit reports, audit reports, and other essential information. The company also discloses 

vital information in accordance with the applicable rules and provides efficient communication 

channels with stakeholders and relevant parties, demonstrating the Board of Directors' unwavering 

commitment to integrity and transparency. The company management affirms that all disclosed 

information is accurate, correct, and not misleading, and that the company's annual financial reports 

comply with international accounting standards and financial reporting requirements. 

 

Additionally, the company maintains a special register that tracks all disclosures made to the Kuwait 

Stock Exchange and the Capital Markets Authority over the past five years. These disclosures are 

also available on the company's website, as per the Capital Markets Authority's requirements. 

 
7.2 Second: Brief on Application of the Requirements for Registering the Disclosures of Members 

of the Board of Directors, Executive Management, and Directors 
 
The company maintains a dedicated register for the disclosures of members of the Board of Directors, 

executive management, and directors. This register is accessible to all shareholders of the company. 

Furthermore, the company ensures that its shareholders are entitled to access this register at no cost. 
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It is committed to updating the register on a regular basis to accurately reflect the current positions 

and interests of related parties. 

 
7.3 Third: A Brief Statement on Application of the Formation Requirements of Investor Affairs Unit 

 
The company has established an Investor Affairs Unit responsible for maintaining communication with 

both current and potential shareholders, and for providing necessary financial data, information, and 

reports. The unit operates with the independence required to ensure that information and reports are 

provided in a timely and accurate manner through recognized disclosure channels, such as the 

company’s corporate website. 

 

Additionally, the company has enhanced its website to facilitate better communication with 

shareholders and has allocated a mobile phone number, alongside the existing landline, for the 

Investor Affairs Unit. The availability of multiple communication channels with shareholders is a key 

objective for the company, ensuring continuous and efficient engagement. 

 
7.4 Fourth: A Brief of How to Develop IT Infrastructure and Rely Heavily on it in Disclosure 

Processes. 
 
The company is committed to the ongoing application and expansion of IT resources for 

communication with its shareholders, investors, and related parties. A dedicated corporate 

governance section has been created on the company’s website, which provides up-to-date 

information and resources that enable shareholders and potential investors to exercise their rights and 

assess the company's performance. Additionally, the company offers an Investor Relations webpage 

and a mobile application for investor relations. 

 
8. Eighth Rule: Respecting Shareholders’ Rights 

 
8.1 First: A Brief on the Application of the Requirements of Specification and Protection of 

Shareholders' General Rights to Ensure Justice and Equality of all Shareholders 
 
Through its Investor Relations Unit, the company upholds its responsibility to treat shareholders with 

the highest standards of transparency and fairness. The company believes that robust corporate 

governance practices enhance shareholder value and establish clear guidelines for the Board of 

Directors, its committees, and executive management to perform their duties in the best interests of 

the company and its shareholders. As part of this commitment, the company aims to achieve the 

highest standards of transparency, accountability, and effective management by adopting and 

monitoring the execution of strategies, goals, and policies that ensure compliance with its 

organizational and ethical responsibilities. 

 

The company is dedicated to ensuring that all shareholders are able to exercise their rights fairly, and 

that these rights are not infringed upon or abused by the company's management, Board of Directors, 

or major shareholders, including: 
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1. A clear mechanism for attendance at the ordinary and extraordinary general assembly 

meetings as specified in the company’s articles of association in accordance with the 

companies’ law and relevant laws. 

2. Shareholders have the right to hold the Board of Directors accountable for their tasks. 

3. Collection of the stipulated share of dividends. 

4. Participation at the shareholder general assembly meetings and voting on its decisions and 

ensuring that the shareholders have received at least seven days prior to the general 

assembly meeting the financial statements of the expired fiscal period as well as the Board of 

Directors' report and the auditor's report. 

5. Collection of a share of the company’s assets in case of its liquidation.  

 

The company encourages all its shareholders to vote on all general assembly decisions including the 

election of the board members. 

 
8.2 Second: Brief on the Special Register Maintained with the Clearing Agency in Compliance with 

the Requirements for Continuous Monitoring of Shareholders' Details 
 
The company maintains an updated copy of the shareholders' register with Kuwait Clearing Company, 

which includes the names, particulars, and the number of shares held by each shareholder, updated 

on a daily basis. The company is committed to ensuring that all information contained in the 

shareholders' register remains confidential and is accessible only to authorized personnel. 

Additionally, the company provides its shareholders with access to the shareholders' register. 
 

8.3 Third: Brief on the Promotion of Shareholder Participation and Voting at General Assembly 
Meetings 
 
Firstly, the company announces the date of the general assembly meeting upon its determination by 

the Board of Directors. A public invitation is then sent to shareholders, inviting them to attend and 

participate in the general assembly meeting, regardless of its type, and including the meeting's 

agenda. This invitation is published in at least two Arabic daily newspapers twice: the first notice at 

least two weeks in advance, and the second notice at least one week in advance. The second notice 

is also published in the official gazette. 

 

Additionally, the company publishes the date of the general assembly meeting on the websites of the 

Kuwait Stock Exchange, the Capital Markets Authority, and other relevant supervisory entities such as 

the Ministry of Commerce and Industry, as well as on the investor relations section of the company’s 

official website. 

 

To ensure broader participation, the company also holds its annual general assembly meeting via 

audio and video communication, enabling all shareholders to participate in discussions and voting 

remotely. 
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9. Ninth Rule: Recognition of the Role of Stakeholders 

 
9.1 First: Brief on the Regulations and Policies for the Protection and Recognition of Stakeholders' 

Rights 
The company respects and protects the rights of its stakeholders in all internal and external dealings 

and transactions. Stakeholders' contributions are considered a crucial resource for enhancing the 

company's competitiveness and reinforcing its profitability. To avoid any conflicts of interest in 

transactions or contracts that may affect shareholders' interests, the company ensures that no 

stakeholder benefits from their involvement in contracts or transactions related to the company’s 

ordinary business activities. 

 

The supervisory role of the Board of Directors is a key element of an efficient governance framework, 

supported by several policies designed to protect stakeholders' rights. These policies include, but are 

not limited to, the conflict of interest policy, whistleblower policy, and related parties’ transactions 

policy. As such, the Board of Directors assumes primary responsibility for safeguarding the rights of 

stakeholders in all dealings and transactions. These policies ensure that all actions taken are in 

alignment with the best interests of stakeholders and maintain transparency and accountability. 

 
 A mechanism for the resolution of any complaints or disputes between the company and its 

stakeholders. 

 Ensuring that dealings with board members and stakeholders are conducted under standard 

conditions, without any discrimination or preferential treatment. 

 Enabling stakeholders to access and refer to information in a timely, organized, and efficient manner. 

 Notifying the Board of Directors of any illegal practices committed within the company, with 

appropriate protection provided to the reporting parties. 

 
 
9.2 Second: Brief on the Promotion of Stakeholder Participation in Monitoring the Company's 

Activities 
 

The company shall treat board members and stakeholders under the same conditions applied to all 

parties, ensuring there is no discrimination or preferential treatment. Additionally, the company will 

review and assess transactions and dealings it proposes to enter into with related parties, providing 

appropriate recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding these transactions. 

 
10. Tenth Rule: Promotion and Improvement of Performance  
 
10.1 First: Brief on the Application of Mechanisms Facilitating Continuous Access to Training 

Programs and Courses for Board and Executive Management Members 
 
The company is committed to ongoing training and professional development, ensuring that members 

of the Board of Directors and executive management possess a comprehensive understanding of all 

subjects relevant to the company’s operations. This training also keeps them informed about the latest 

developments in administrative, financial, and economic fields, as well as enhancing their strategic 

planning capabilities to align with the company’s needs and objectives. 
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The Board of Directors and executive management regularly participate in periodic training courses 

focused on developments in governance mechanisms, risk management, and other subjects directly 

related to the company’s activities. These courses are part of a structured and continuous 

development program. 

 
10.2 Second: Brief on the Appraisal of the Performance of the Entire Board of Directors, Individual 

Board Members, and Executive Management 
 
The company has established systems and mechanisms for the periodic appraisal of the performance 

of each member of the Board of Directors and executive management. These appraisals are based on 

a set of performance parameters that assess the achievement of the company’s strategic goals, the 

effectiveness of risk management, and the efficiency of internal systems. The Board of Directors has 

also approved the performance appraisal criteria for both the Board and executive management to 

ensure alignment with the company’s objectives and continuous improvement. 

 
10.3 Third: Brief on the Board of Directors’ Efforts for Value Creation for Company Staff Through 

Achievement of Strategic Goals and Improvement of Performance Standards 
 
The Board of Directors and executive management are committed to fostering institutional values 

within the company by adhering to the highest standards of professional conduct, as outlined in the 

company’s code of ethics and staff guidelines. These efforts are aimed at achieving superior business 

practices, aligning with the company’s strategic goals, and continuously improving performance 

standards. Through these initiatives, the company effectively creates a culture of institutional values 

for its staff, promoting ongoing efforts to uphold the company’s financial integrity and long-term 

success. 

 
11. Eleventh Rule: Emphasis on the Significance of Corporate Social Responsibility  

 
11.1 First: Summary of the Policy Setting Balance Between Company Goals and Society Goals  
 

National Petroleum Services Company is committed to maintaining its position as one of the leading 

Kuwaiti companies, actively playing a key role in implementing its corporate social responsibility policy, 

which has been approved by the Board of Directors. The company consistently upholds ethical 

business practices and contributes to community development in alignment with Kuwait’s Vision 2035. 

This commitment is reflected in its ongoing efforts to: 

 

－ Contributing to the creation of new job opportunities, facilitating the integration of manpower into 

society, and ensuring the provision of appropriate working conditions. 

－ Providing comprehensive health and safety coverage for its staff, ensuring a secure and supportive 

work environment. 

－ Empowering the private sector, particularly small and medium-sized enterprises and crafts, to enhance 

their environmental performance by offering consultancy services for environmental assessments at 

affordable prices. 
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11.2 Second: Brief on Applied Programs and Mechanisms Highlighting the Company’s Efforts in 

the Social Work Field 
 

 Providing comprehensive medical insurance for all company staff. 

 Donating 1% of the company’s annual net profit to charitable projects and initiatives. 

 Fostering the development and promotion of national Kuwaiti manpower, enhancing their 

competitiveness in the workforce. 

 Ensuring compliance with public societal interests and contributing to effective economic 

development when making important business decisions. 

 Actively working to protect the environment by preventing pollution and minimizing other 

environmental damages. 

 Considering the social impact of services or products, including the impact of recalls and immediate 

responses, while adhering to applicable laws and regulations. 

 Designing company activities in alignment with the economic conditions and cultural context of 

society. 

 Providing training programs to develop the capabilities of targeted societal groups. 

 Participating in seminars and forums to raise awareness among undergraduates and graduates 

about labor requirements and the workings of the Kuwaiti private sector. 

 Encouraging staff to adopt technology in both professional and personal lives to reduce their carbon 

footprint and minimize exposure to traffic accidents. 

 Offering awareness courses for staff and their families regarding household safety practices. 
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· Introduction:

The Audit and Risk Management Committee assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities 
related to the preparation of financial reports, evaluation of internal control systems, risk management processes, 
and audit activities. The Committee also provides relevant recommendations and oversees the company’s 
procedures for ensuring compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and standards of professional conduct.

The Committee is composed of three (3) members, including one independent member. It is responsible for 
reviewing significant accounting matters and reports, including complex or unusual transactions, areas requiring 
discretionary judgments, and matters of a professional or supervisory nature. The Committee assesses the impact 
of such issues on the financial statements, provides opinions, and submits recommendations to the Board of 
Directors. It also reviews audit findings in coordination with the company’s management and external auditors, 
including any challenges or issues encountered during the audit process.

The Committee periodically reviews the financial statements prior to their submission to the Board of Directors 
and provides its opinions and recommendations in this regard. This process aims to ensure the transparency and 
fairness of the financial reports.

The Committee also oversees internal audit activities through regular meetings with the Internal Auditor, reviewing 
audit findings, and following up on internal audit reports. It reviews and approves the risk report prepared by 
the Risk Officer, as well as the matrix of authorities. The Committee provides recommendations to the Board of 
Directors regarding these matters, reviews the nature of relevant risks, and ensures the independence of both the 
Risk Management Officer and the Internal Audit Officer.

Additionally, the Committee evaluates the Internal Audit Department and provides recommendations to the 
Board of Directors. It also makes recommendations to the Board regarding the renewal or non-renewal of the 
external auditor’s appointment, through a final vote before the Ordinary General Assembly of Shareholders.

· Internal Audit Systems:

The Board of Directors approved the policies and procedural guidelines that cover all corporate activities and 
departments, outlining the corporate control strategy as well as the responsibilities and duties of corporate 
staff. The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board monitors the implementation of these policies 
and procedures. It held regular meetings to manage and assess the efficiency of internal control systems. The 
Committee also reviewed the reports and observations submitted in accordance with the reporting hierarchy 
across various departments, ensuring a dual layer of oversight.

Furthermore, the Committee held regular meetings with the Internal Auditor to review reports related to various 
corporate departments, as well as all the findings of the Internal Auditor. It also examined the previous year’s 
comments and the corresponding management responses in order to identify potential corporate risks and 
obstacles, assess their significance, and ensure appropriate measures are taken to avoid them. The Committee also 
ensures that effective control is exercised across all corporate departments in line with the corporate governance 
structure, and that qualified personnel and appropriate control tools are available to support an efficient internal 
control environment.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee also reviews and approves the proposed Internal Audit plan and 
ensures its effective implementation.
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· Correctness of financial statements and reports:

The Audit and Risk Management Committee performs its role in reviewing and supervising the external auditors’ 
reports on the company’s quarterly and annual financial statements prior to their submission to the Board of 
Directors. The Committee ensures the accuracy of the financial statements, as well as the independence and 
integrity of the external auditor. The auditor’s independent opinion is included as part of the company’s annual 
report.

Summary of the Audit and Risk Management Committee’s meetings:

Name of member Position

No. of meetings: (8) meetings
From 01/01/2024 To 31/12/2024

1
08/01

2
24/03

3
27/03

4
09/05

5
05/08

6
18/09

7
07/11

8
15/12

Sheikh, Hamad Jaber Al-Sabah Chairman
Independent P P P P P P P P

Ms. Ghada Eissa Khalaf Member P P P P P P P P

Mr. Sadoun Abdullah Ali Member P P P P P P P P

Mr. Sameh El-Sayed Basha Board Secretary P P P P P P P P

Audit and Risk Management Committee
National Petroleum Services Company (K.S.C.) Public
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To the Shareholders of 
National Petroleum Services Company - K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiaries 
State of Kuwait 
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of National Petroleum Services Company - K.S.C.P. (the “Parent 
Company") and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 
December 31, 2024, and the consolidated statements of profit or loss, profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a 
summary of material accounting policies information. 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position 
of the Group as at December 31, 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards (IFRSs). 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) 
together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the State of 
Kuwait, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters  
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. Below is the key audit matter we identified and how our audit addressed the matter. 
 
Recognition and measurement of revenue 
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer and in 
case of revenue from services, over the time when the services are rendered. Revenue for individual jobs is measured 
based on the contractual terms and master agreements that are agreed with customers relating to oil field services and non-
oil field services. 
 
Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied. 
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of the Group as at December 31, 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards (IFRSs). 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) 
together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the State of 
Kuwait, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters  
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. Below is the key audit matter we identified and how our audit addressed the matter. 
 
Recognition and measurement of revenue 
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer and in 
case of revenue from services, over the time when the services are rendered. Revenue for individual jobs is measured 
based on the contractual terms and master agreements that are agreed with customers relating to oil field services and non-
oil field services. 
 
Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied. 
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Due to the multi-element nature of such jobs involving supply of goods, which are of specialized nature, and rendering of 
services that comprise supply of manpower and equipment usage charges, there is a significant risk of misstatement in the 
recognition and measurement of revenue. We considered this as a key audit matter. 
 
Our audit procedures, among others, included assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s revenue recognition accounting 
policies and compliance with those policies. Further, we performed test of details by verifying the revenue recognized to the 
underlying contracts, master agreements and records supporting delivery of goods and services rendered, including 
identification of performance obligations within each contract, testing of timing and selection of progress measures for 
revenue recognition and cut-off procedures. We also performed substantive analytical review which included a detailed 
comparison of revenue and gross profit margin with the previous year and budgets as well as product wise detailed analysis. 
 
The accounting policy and the related disclosures for revenue recognition are set out in Notes (2 – r, 2 – z & 19) in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
 
Other Information included in the Group’s annual report for the year ended December 31, 2024 
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included in the Group’s 
2024 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained 
the Parent Company’s Board of Directors report for the year ended 2024, but we have not obtained the annual report, and 
we expect to obtain these reports after the date of our auditor’s report. In connection with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, we consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. Our 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance opinion thereon. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Parent Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal 
control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Group’s management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Plan and perform the Group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of 
the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the Group audit. 
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion . 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We disclose these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the consolidated financial 
statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors relating to these 
consolidated financial statements are in accordance therewith. We further report that, we obtained all the information and 
explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial statements incorporate all 
information that is required by the Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its Executive Regulations, as amended, and by the 
Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly 
carried out, and that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No. 1 of 2016 and its 
Executive Regulations, as amended, or of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of association, 
as amended, have occurred during the year ended December 31, 2024, that might have had a material effect on the 
business or consolidated financial position of the Parent Company.  
 
Furthermore, we have not become aware of any material violations of the provisions of Law 7 of 2010 relating to the Capital 
Markets Authority and its related regulations, as amended, during the year ended December 31, 2024, that might have had 
a material effect on the Parent Company’s consolidated financial position or results of its operations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
State of Kuwait 
March 25, 2025 

Nayef M. Al Bazie 
License No. 91-A 
RSM Albazie & Co. 
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NATIONAL PETROLEUM SERVICES COMPANY - K.S.C.P. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024  
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar) 
 

6 
 

 Notes  2024  2023 
      
Sales and services revenue  19  41,028,898  39,522,799 
Cost of sales and services rendered   (27,846,584)  (28,650,618) 
Gross profit   13,182,314  10,872,181 
      
Interest income   567,028  870,811 
Investment income 20  44,958  60,881 
Other income   261,665  236,379 
Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary  2 – b  2,606,240  - 
Group’s share of results from associates 4  2,436,388  - 
Group’s share of results from joint venture 5  2,159,378  - 
Provision for expected credit losses (charged) no longer 

required  8 – b  (243,200)  75,656 
General and administrative expenses 21  (3,502,498)  (2,992,530) 
Profit for the year before taxes and Board of Directors’ 

remuneration   17,512,273  9,123,378 
      
Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of 

Sciences (KFAS) 22  (107,270)  (91,234) 
National Labor Support Tax (NLST) 2 – u  (390,296)  (214,130) 
Zakat 2 – v  (119,070)  (85,652) 
Board of Directors’ remuneration 24  (169,381)  (136,851) 
Profit for the year   16,726,256  8,595,511 
      
Attributable to:      
The Parent Company’s Shareholders   13,424,081  8,595,516 
Non-controlling interests   3,302,175  (5) 
   16,726,256  8,595,511 
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the Parent 

Company’s Shareholders (Fils) 23  148.59  88.66 
 
 

The accompanying notes from (1) to (29) form an integral part of consolidated financial statements. 
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NATIONAL PETROLEUM SERVICES COMPANY - K.S.C.P. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024  
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar) 
 

7 
 

 Notes  2024  2023 
      
Profit for the year   16,726,256  8,595,511 
      
Other comprehensive (loss) income for the year: 
      
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the 

consolidated statement profit or loss:      
Foreign currency translation adjustments   (1,194)  436 
Group’s share of other comprehensive loss of associates 4  (212)  - 
      
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the 

consolidated statement of profit or loss:      
Group’s share of other comprehensive income of associates 4  64,369  - 
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI 6  (547,143)  - 
Total other comprehensive (loss) income for the year   (484,180) ¤  436 
Total comprehensive income for the year   16,242,076 ¤  8,595,947 
      
Attributable to: 
The Parent Company’s Shareholders   13,167,291  8,595,952 
Non-controlling interests   3,074,785  (5) 
   16,242,076  8,595,947 
 
 

The accompanying notes from (1) to (29) form an integral part of consolidated financial statements. 
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NATIONAL PETROLEUM SERVICES COMPANY - K.S.C.P. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar) 
 

9 
 

 Notes  2024  2023 
Cash flows from operating activities:      
Profit for the year before tax and after Board of Directors’ remuneration   17,342,892  8,986,527 

      

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax and after Board of Directors’ remuneration:      
Depreciation expense 3  2,844,830  2,535,625 
Amortization of right-of-use assets   206,000  311,752 
Profit on lease cancellation    (537)  - 
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment   (115,081)  (63,783) 
Retirement of property, plant and equipment 3  47  59,548 
Group’s share of results from associates 4  (2,436,388)  - 
Group’s share of results from joint venture 5  (2,159,378)  - 
Net provision for slow moving inventories charged (no longer required)  7  – a  25,260  (44,161) 
Provision for expected credit losses charged (no longer required) 8  – b  243,200  (75,656) 
Dividends income 20  (41,989)  (60,099) 
Realized gain on sale of financial assets at FVTPL 20  (2,500)  - 
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL 20  (469)  (782) 
Net foreign exchange differences   22,372  26,600 
Interest income   (567,028)  (870,811) 
Interest expense on lease liabilities  21  9,726  21,140 
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 17  801,611  610,253 
Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary 2 – b  (2,606,240)  - 

   13,566,328  11,436,153 
Changes in working capital:      
Inventories   (938,833)  1,546,902 
Trade receivables and contract assets   3,777,532  1,264,341 
Prepayments and other debit balances   (269,220)  746,253 
Net movement in due from / due to related parties   1,597,250  - 
Account payables and accrued expenses   (131,580)  (374,204) 
Cash flows generated from operations   17,601,477  14,619,445 
Payment for employees’ end of service benefits 17  (365,161)  (1,698,784) 
Taxes paid   (432,427)  (355,582) 
Net cash flows generated from operating activities   16,803,889  12,565,079 
      

Cash flows from investing activities:      
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  3  (3,014,637)  (3,774,990) 
Paid for purchase of additional ownership interest in a subsidiary   (620,304)  - 
Paid for acquisition of subsidiaries   (3,683,722)  (11,500,000) 
Paid for purchase of investments in associates 4  (675,371)  - 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment   115,336  63,783 
Proceeds from recovery of financial assets at FVTPL   616,000  - 
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at FVOCI 6  20,110  - 
Dividends income received 20  41,989  60,099 
Dividends income received from associates 4  1,402,505  - 
Dividends income received from joint venture  5  159,038  - 
Interest income received   520,076  848,183 
Cash related to a consolidated subsidiary 2  – b  2,180,229  1,357,272 
Net movement in term deposits   (5,046,937)  6,000,000 
Net cash flows used in investing activities   (7,985,688)  (6,945,653) 
      

Cash flows from financing activities:      
Cash dividends paid to the Parent Company’s Shareholders   (5,350,353)  (4,804,960) 
Cash dividends paid to non-controlling interests   (663,008)  - 
Payment of lease liabilities   (223,040)  (334,933) 
Net cash flows used in financing activities   (6,236,401)  (5,139,893) 
      

Foreign currency translation adjustments   (1,194)  436 
      

Net increase in bank balances and cash   2,580,606  479,969 
Bank balances and cash at the beginning of the year   2,660,961  2,180,992 
Bank balances and cash at the end of the year 12  5,241,567  2,660,961 
      

Non-cash items excluded from the consolidated statement of cash flows:      
Additions to right of use assets   -  (202,491) 
Additions to lease liabilities   -  202,491 
   -  - 

 
 

The accompanying notes from (1) to (29) form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 
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NATIONAL PETROLEUM SERVICES COMPANY - K.S.C.P. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar) 
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1- Incorporation and activities 
National Petroleum Services Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) is as a Kuwaiti Public Shareholding 
Company incorporated on January 3, 1993, and its shares are publicly traded in Boursa Kuwait. The Parent Company 
is registered in Commercial Register under No. 49911 dated March 28, 1993. 
 
The main objectives of the Parent Company are as follows: 
 Performing all support services for wells drilling, repairing and preparation for production as well as wells 

maintenance-related services. 
 Establishing industrial firms for the purpose of manufacturing and producing the equipment and materials 

necessary for achieving such objectives after obtaining the approval of the competent authorities. 
 Importing and owning machines, tools and materials necessary for achieving its objectives. 
 Owning lands and real estate necessary for establishing its facilities and equipment.  
 Importing and exporting chemicals necessary for the execution of the works stated above.  
 Concluding agreements and obtaining privileges which it deems necessary for achieving its objectives.  
 Possessing the required patents and trademarks. 
 Obtaining and granting agencies in respect of the Parent Company’s business operations. 
 Conducting studies, queries and researches relevant to the Parent Company’s main objectives.  

 
The Parent Company may carry out all of the above-mentioned activities inside the State of Kuwait or abroad. The 
Parent Company may also have an interest or participate in any way with entities practicing activities similar to its 
own or which may assist it in achieving its objectives inside the State of Kuwait or abroad, or may acquire or affiliated 
those entities. 
 
The Parent Company is located at Shuaiba Industrial Area, Al-Ahmadi, Plot 3 and its registered postal address is 
P.O. Box 9801, 61008, Kuwait. 
 
The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Parent Company’s Board of Directors on 
March 25, 2025. 
 

2- Material accounting policies information 
 

a) Basis of preparation: 
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS Accounting 
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). Material accounting 
policies are summarized as follows: 
 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (“KD”) which is the functional currency of the 
Group and are prepared under the historical cost basis except for financial assets at FVOCI and financial assets at 
FVTPL that are stated at their fair value. 
 
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. 
 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the process of applying the Group’s accounting 
policies. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions are disclosed in Note (2  – z). The key 
sources of estimation uncertainty are consistent with the annual audited consolidated financial statements of the 
Group for the year ended December 31, 2023. 
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Adoption of new and revised Standards 
 
New and revised Standards that are effective for the current year 
The accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those 
used in the previous year except for the changes due to implementation of the following new and revised IFRS 
Accounting Standards as of January 1, 2024: 
 
Amendments to IFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 
The amendments to IFRS 16 require a seller-lessee, in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback 
transaction, not to recognize any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. 
 
The amendments must be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of 
initial application of IFRS 16. 
 
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements—Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 
The amendments specify that only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or before the end of the 
reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
date (and therefore must be considered in assessing the classification of the liability as current or non-current). 
Such covenants affect whether the right exists at the end of the reporting period, even if compliance with the 
covenant is assessed only after the reporting date (e.g. a covenant based on the entity’s financial position at the 
reporting date that is assessed for compliance only after the reporting date). 
 
The IASB also specifies that the right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
date is not affected if an entity only has to comply with a covenant after the reporting period. However, if the entity’s 
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with covenants within twelve months after the 
reporting period, an entity discloses information that enables users of the consolidated financial statements to 
understand the risk of the liabilities becoming repayable within twelve months after the reporting period. This would 
include information about the covenants (including the nature of the covenants and when the entity is required to 
comply with them), the carrying amount of related liabilities and facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that 
the entity may have difficulties complying with the covenants. 
 
The amendments must be applied retrospectively. 
 
Amendments to IAS 1 – Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 
These amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or 
non-current. The amendments clarify: 
 What is meant by a right to defer settlement 
 That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period 
 That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right 
 That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of a 

liability not impact its classification 
 
The amendments must be applied retrospectively. 
 
Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 
These amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures clarify the 
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The 
disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended to assist users of the consolidated financial statements 
in understanding the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to 
liquidity risk. 
 
The adoption of the above amendments and interpretations did not have material impact on the disclosures or on 
the amounts reported in these consolidated financial statements.  
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New and revised Standards issued but not yet effective 
At the date of authorization of these consolidated financial statements, the  Group has not applied the following new 
and revised Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective: 
 
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements 
The new standard, IFRS 18, replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements while carrying forward many of 
the requirements in IAS 1. 
 
IFRS 18 introduces new requirements to: 
- present specified categories and defined subtotals in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, 
- provide disclosures on management-defined performance measures (MPMs) in the notes to the consolidated 

financial statements, 
- improve aggregation and disaggregation. 
 
IFRS 18 requires retrospective application with specific transition provisions. An entity is required to apply IFRS 18 
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027 with earlier application permitted. 
 
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 
The new standard, IFRS 19 specifies the disclosure requirements an eligible subsidiary is permitted to apply instead 
of the disclosure requirements in other IFRS Accounting Standards. An entity is required to apply IFRS 19 for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027. 
 
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 - Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments 
An entity is required to apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2026.The amendments include: 
- A clarification that a financial liability is derecognized on the 'settlement date' and introduce an accounting 

policy choice (if specific conditions are met) to derecognize financial liabilities settled using an electronic 
payment system before the settlement date. 

- Additional guidance on how the contractual cash flows for financial assets with environmental, social and 
corporate governance (ESG) and similar features should be assessed 

- Clarifications on what constitute 'non-recourse features' and what are the characteristics of contractually linked 
instruments 

- The introduction of disclosures for financial instruments with contingent features and additional disclosure 
requirements for equity instruments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) 

 
Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21) 
The amendments contain guidance to specify when a currency is exchangeable and how to determine the exchange 
rate when it is not. 
 
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. Earlier application 
is permitted. 
 
An entity is required to recognize any effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening 
balance of retained earnings when the entity reports foreign currency transactions. When an entity uses a 
presentation currency other than its functional currency, it recognizes the cumulative amount of translation 
differences in equity. 
 
These amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the consolidated financial statements. 
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b) Basis of consolidation: 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and the following 
subsidiaries: 

      
Principal activities 

 
  
  

Country of 
incorporation 

  Ownership interest % 
Name of the subsidiary      2024  2023 

 

Directly held :          
Napesco International Petroleum 

Services – S.P.C. (“Napesco 
International”)  

Drilling & maintenance of 
oil wells and chemical 
waste management   State of Kuwait  100%  100% 

United Oil Projects Company 
K.S.C.C. (“UOP”)  Petrochemical activities   State of Kuwait  55.59%  52.92% 

          
Indirectly held through Napesco 

International :          

Napesco India – L.L.P. (“Napesco 
India”)   

Support activities for 
petroleum & natural gas 

mining incidental to 
onshore and offshore oil & 

gas extraction   India  99.99%  99.99% 
          
Indirectly held through UOP :          
United Qmax Drilling Fluids Company 

- W.L.L.  Petroleum activities   State of Kuwait  100%  51% * 
 
Under shares purchase agreements dated January 30, 2024, and August 25, 2024, between the Group’s 
management and Qmax Solutions Inc., the Group acquired the remaining 49% ownership interest in United Qmax 
Drilling Fluids Company - W.L.L. (* formerly a 51%-owned joint venture of the Group) for a total consideration of 
KD 688,860, of which KD 153,802 was paid in cash during the current year, while KD 535,058 represents tax 
liabilities of the selling company, which the Group will assume. 
 
The Group's management accounted for the transaction in accordance with IFRS 3, Business Combinations – Step 
Acquisition. On December 19, 2024, the Group satisfied all contractual obligations and conditions of the purchase 
agreements and obtained control over the subsidiary, effective December 19, 2024 (date of obtaining control over 
the subsidiary). Therefore, the financial statements of the subsidiary were then consolidated in accordance with 
IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
At the date of obtaining control, the Group's management assessed the provisional fair values of the net identifiable 
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary at KD 6,896,931 based on the carrying amounts of the net identifiable assets 
and liabilities of the subsidiary at the date of obtaining control. The management is still in the process of finalizing 
the fair value measurement of the net assets acquired. 
 
As a result of the acquisition, a gain amounting to KD 2,606,240 was recognized, and its breakdown is as follows: 

 

 
December 19,  

2024 
Acquisition consideration 688,860 
Add: Provisional fair values of the previously held interest in the joint venture (Note 5) 3,601,831 
Total 4,290,691 
Less: Provisional fair values of the net identifiable assets of the subsidiary 6,896,931 
Gain on acquisition 2,606,240 

  

71



 
NATIONAL PETROLEUM SERVICES COMPANY - K.S.C.P. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar) 
 

14 
 

Summarized statement of financial position of the acquired subsidiary as at the acquisition date as follows: 
 

Assets 
December 19,  

2024 
Bank balances and cash 2,180,229 
Accounts receivable and other debit balances 2,641,557 
Inventories 993,248 
Property, plant and equipment  1,800,789 
Other assets 1,434,591 
Total assets 9,050,414 
  
Liabilities   
Accounts payable and other credit balances 1,997,982 
Other liabilities  155,501 
Total Liabilities 2,153,483 
Net assets 6,896,931 
Provisional fair values of net identifiable assets of the subsidiary 6,896,931 
 
Subsidiaries are those companies controlled by the Parent Company. Control is achieved when the Parent 
Company: 
 has power over the investee. 
 is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee. 
 has the ability to use its power to affect investee’s returns. 
  
The Parent Company reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there 
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. 
 
When the Parent Company has less than a majority of voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee 
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee. The 
Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in 
an investee are sufficient to give it power, including: 
 The size of the Parent Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the 

other vote holders. 
 Potential voting rights held by the Parent Company, other vote holders or other parties. 
 rights arising from other contractual arrangements. 
 any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Parent Company has the financial ability to direct 

the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous 
shareholders’ meetings.      

 
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date of 
acquisition of control until the date of loss of control. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or 
disposed of during the year are included in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
from the date the Parent Company acquires control until the date when the Parent Company loses control over the 
subsidiary. All inter-company balances and transactions, including inter-company profits and unrealized profits and 
losses are eliminated in consolidation. Consolidated financial statements are prepared using consistent accounting 
policies for transactions and other events in similar circumstances. 
  
Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Parent 
Company’s equity therein. The consolidated statement of profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive 
income are attributed to the Parent Company’s Shareholders and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results 
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 
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A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted for as an equity 
transaction. The carrying amounts of the Parent Company’s ownership interests and non-controlling interests are 
adjusted to reflect changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by 
which non-controlling interests are adjusted and fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized 
directly in equity and attributable to the Parent Company’s shareholders. If the Parent Company loses control over 
a subsidiary, it: 
 Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary. 
 Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests. 
 Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity. 
 Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received. 
 Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained. 
 Recognizes any surplus or deficit in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 
 Reclassifies the Parent Company’s share of components previously recognized in the consolidated statement 

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income to the consolidated profit or loss or retained earnings as 
appropriate. 

 
c) Current vs non-current classification: 

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on current / non-
current classification. 
 
An asset is current when it is: 
 Expected to be realized or intended by the Group to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle. 
 Held primarily for the purpose of trading. 
 Expected to be realized within twelve months after the date of consolidated financial statements. 
 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 

months after the date of consolidated financial statements. 
 
The Group classifies all other assets as non-current. 
 
A liability is current when: 
 It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle. 
 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading. 
 Expected to be settled within twelve months after the date of the consolidated financial statements. 
 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the date 

of consolidated financial statements. 
 
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

 
d) Financial instruments: 

The Group classifies its financial instruments as “financial assets” and “financial liabilities”. Financial assets and 
financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party of the contractual provisions of such 
instruments. Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangement. 

 
Financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the consolidated statement of financial position include bank 
balances and cash, term deposits, due from / to related parties, receivables, financial assets at FVOCI, contract 
assets and liabilities, financial assets at FVTPL, lease liabilities and payables. 
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1) Financial assets 
 

Classification of financial assets 
To determine their classification and measurement category, IFRS (9) requires all financial assets, except equity 
instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the Group’s business model for 
managing the Group’s assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics. 

 
Business model assessment 
The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages group of financial assets 
to achieve its business objectives and in order to generate contractual cash flows. That is, whether the Group’s 
objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash 
flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are 
held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘Sell’ business model and measured 
at FVTPL. The Group’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher 
level of aggregated portfolios. 

 
Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI test) 
Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows 
and sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent Solely Payments of 
Principal and Interest (the ‘SPPI test’). ‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the 
financial asset at initial recognition that may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are 
repayments of principal or amortization of the premium/discount). The most significant elements of interest 
within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. 
 
The Group reclassifies when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. The 
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the change. Such changes are 
expected to be very infrequent, and none occurred during the year. 
 
Initial recognition 
Purchases and sales of the financial assets are recognized on settlement date – the date on which an asset is 
delivered to or by the Group. Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all 
financial assets not carried at FVTPL. 
 
Derecognition 
A financial asset (in whole or in part) is derecognized either when: the contractual rights to receive the cash 
flows from the financial asset have expired; or the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from 
the financial asset and either: a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset by the Group, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 
of the financial asset, but has transferred control of the financial asset. Where the Group has retained control, 
it shall continue to recognize the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

 
Measurement categories of financial assets 
The Group classifies its financial assets upon initial recognition into the following categories: 
 Debt instruments at amortized cost. 
 Equity instruments at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to the consolidated statement of profit or 

loss on derecognition. 
 Financial assets at FVTPL. 
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Debt instruments at amortized costs 
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions: 
 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows. 
 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
Debt instruments measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
yield method adjusted for impairment losses if any. Gain and losses are recognized in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired. 
 
Amortized cost and effective interest method 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating 
interest income over the relevant period. 
 
The amortized cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial 
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method 
of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The 
gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortized cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss 
allowance.
 
Bank balances and cash, term deposits, trade receivables, due from a related party and contract assets are 
classified as debt instruments at amortized cost. 

 
 Term deposits 

Term deposits are placed with banks and have a contractual maturity of more than three months. 
 

 Trade receivables 
Receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold, units rental or services performed in 
the ordinary course of business and are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. 

 
Equity instruments at FVOCI 
Upon initial recognition, the Group may elect to classify irrevocably some of its equity instruments at FVOCI 
when they are neither held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a business combination. Such 
classification is determined on an instrument-by- instrument basis. 
 
Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair values including foreign 
exchange component are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the cumulative changes 
in fair values as part of equity. Cumulative gains and losses previously recognized in other comprehensive 
income are transferred to retained earnings on derecognition. Gains and losses on these equity instruments are 
never recycled to consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognized in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss when the right of the payment has been established, except when the Group benefits 
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded 
in other comprehensive income. 
 
The Group classifies investments in quoted and unquoted equity investments under financial assets at FVOCI 
in the consolidated statement of financial position. 
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Financial assets at FVTPL 
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortized cost or FVOCI (see above) are 
measured at FVTPL. Specifically:  
 Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity 

investment as at FVOCI on initial recognition (see above).  
 Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVOCI criteria (see above) are 

classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortized cost criteria or the 
FVOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or 
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (“accounting mismatch”) that would arise 
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases. 

 
Changes in fair value, gain on disposal, interest income and dividends are recorded in consolidated statement 
of profit or loss according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has been established. 

 
The Group classifies investments in equity instruments and quoted debt instruments as financial assets at 
FVTPL in the consolidated statement of financial position. 

 
Impairment of financial assets 
The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) for all debt instruments not held at fair 
value through profit or loss. 
  
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and 
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the 
asset’s original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral 
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 

 
For contract assets and trade and other receivables, the Group applies the standard’s simplified approach and 
calculates ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. Accordingly, the Group does not track changes in 
credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. 
 
The Group establishes a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted 
for forward-looking factors specific to the customers and the economic environment. Exposures are segmented 
based on common credit characteristics such as credit risk grade, geographic region and industry, delinquency 
status and age of relationship, where applicable.
 
For related parties balances and inter-company loans, the Group has applied a forward-looking approach 
wherein recognition of credit losses is no longer dependent on the Group first identifying a credit loss event. 
Instead, the Group considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring expected 
credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the 
expected collectability of the future cash flows of the debt instrument.
 
In applying this forward-looking approach, the Group applies a three stage assessment to measuring ECL as 
follows: 
 Stage 1 – financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial 

recognition or that have low credit risk. 
 Stage 2 (not credit impaired) – financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since 

initial recognition and whose credit risk is not low. 
 Stage 3 (credit impaired) – financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date 

and assessed as credit impaired when one or more events have a detrimental impact on the estimated 
future cash flows have occurred. 
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In assessing whether the credit quality on a financial instrument has deteriorated significantly since initial 
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date 
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this 
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and 
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost 
or effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which the 
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, 
relevant think-tanks and other similar organizations, as well as consideration of various external sources of 
actual and forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s core operations. 
 
12-month expected credit losses are recognized for Stage 1 while “lifetime expected credit losses” are 
recognized for Stage 2. Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible 
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECL for financial assets represents the 
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible 
within 12 months after the date of consolidated financial statements. 
 
Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses 
over the expected life of the financial instrument. ECLs measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross 
carrying amount of the assets and charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss. For debt instruments at 
FVOCI, the provision is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. 

 
The Group considers a financial asset as credit impaired when contractual payments are 60 days past due. 
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or 
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full. 
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
 

2) Financial liabilities 
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings, advances and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at 
FVTPL or at amortized cost using effective interest rate method. 

 
Financial liabilities at amortized cost 
Financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value as above are measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. 

 
 Accounts payable 

Accounts payable include trade and other payables. Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or 
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business. Trade payables are recognized initially 
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Accounts 
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating 
cycle of the business if longer) If not, they are presented as non – current liabilities. 

 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the–liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. If 
the modification is not substantial, the difference between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability before the 
modification; and (2) the present value of the cash flows after modification should be recognized in profit or loss 
as the modification gain or loss within other gains and losses. 
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3) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of 
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 
e) Contract assets: 

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. 
If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or 
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional. 

Contract assets is assessed for impairment under the simplified approach in accordance with IFRS 9: Financial 
Instruments. 

 
f) Inventories: 

Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or net realizable value after providing allowances for any 
obsolete or slow-moving items. Inventories costs comprise direct materials indirect overheads that have been 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average 
basis 

 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the costs of completion 
and selling expenses. Write-off is made for obsolete and slow-moving items based on their expected future use and 
net realizable value. 

 
g) Investment in associates: 

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence which is the power to participate in the 
financial and operating policy decisions of the associate but is not control or joint control over those policies. The 
Group’s Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, investment 
in associates are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for changes in the 
Group’s share of the net assets of the associate from the date that significant influence effectively commences until 
the date that significant influence effectively ceases, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in 
which case it is accounted as per IFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.  
 
The Group recognizes in its consolidated statement of profit or loss for its share of results of operations of the 
associate and in its other comprehensive income for its share of changes in other comprehensive income of 
associate. 
 
Losses of an associate in excess of the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests 
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate) are not recognized except to the extent 
that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate. 
 
Unrealized gains or losses arising from transactions with associates are eliminated against the investment in the 
associate to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate. 
 
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities 
and contingent liabilities of the associate is recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying 
amount of the investment in associates and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment. If the cost of 
acquisition is lower than the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities, the difference is recognized immediately in consolidated statement of profit or loss. 
 
The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in 
associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is 
tested for impairment and the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable 
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in consolidated statement of profit or 
loss. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment 
subsequently increases.  

78

Annual Report 2024



 
NATIONAL PETROLEUM SERVICES COMPANY - K.S.C.P. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 
(All amounts are in Kuwaiti Dinar) 
 

21 
 

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any retaining investment 
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and 
the fair value of the retaining investment and proceeds from disposal are recognized in consolidated statement of 
profit or loss. 
 

h) Joint arrangements: 
The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as joint ventures depending on the Group’s right to the 
assets and obligations for the liabilities of the arrangements.  
 
a) Joint ventures: 

A joint venture is an arrangement, whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights 
to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an 
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the 
parties sharing control. 
 
Investment in joint ventures is accounted based on equity method similar to associates (2 – g). 

 
i) Business combinations: 

A business combination is the bringing together of separate entities or businesses into one reporting entity as a 
result of one entity, the acquirer, obtaining control of one or more other businesses. Business combinations are 
accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the 
consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests 
in the acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interests in the acquiree 
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the assets in the event of 
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. 
 
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate 
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent 
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the 
acquiree. 
 
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in 
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date and the resulting gain / loss is included in 
consolidated statement of profit or loss or other comprehensive income as appropriate. 
 
The Group separately recognizes contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination if it is a present obligation 
that arises from past events and its fair value can be measured reliably. 
 
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the acquisition 
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or 
liability will be recognized in accordance with IFRS 9: “Financial Instruments”. If the contingent consideration is 
classified as equity, it shall not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity. 
 
If the initial accounting for business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the 
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting in incomplete. 
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are 
recognized, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date 
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. 

 
The Group’s management accounts for the consolidation of the results of the subsidiaries under the joint control of 
the Ultimate Parent Company and its subsidiaries using the book values of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary, 
and includes the difference between the acquired net assets and the sale consideration as gains or losses on 
retained earnings in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. 
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j) Property, plant and equipment: 
The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of 
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property, 
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, are 
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. In 
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future 
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment beyond its 
originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of property, 
plant and equipment. Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment that 
is accounted for separately is capitalized and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. 

 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. When 
assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and any gain 
or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The carrying values 
of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate 
the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the 
estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount, being the higher of their 
fair value less costs to sell and their value in use. 
 
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
as follows: 
 

Years     
20  Buildings 
10  Locations improvements 
10  Plant and machinery 
3  Furniture and fixtures 
3  Motor vehicles 

 
The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and period of 
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and 
equipment. 
 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 
 

k) Impairment of non-financial assets: 
At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is 
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount 
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
 
Recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using an appropriate discount rate. The discount 
rate should reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is 
recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, unless the carrying amount of relevant asset 
is revalued, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. 
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When reversing an impairment loss subsequently, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. However, the increased carrying amount due to 
reversal of impairment loss should not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 
loss is recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at 
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase. 

 
l) Contract liabilities: 

A contract liability arises if a customer pays consideration, or if the Group has a right to consideration that is 
unconditional, before the good or service is transferred to the customer. Contract liabilities are recognized as 
revenue when the Group performs under the contract. 
 

m) Provision for end of service indemnity: 
Provision is made for amounts payable to employees under the Kuwaiti Labour Law in the private sector and 
employee contracts. This liability, which is unfunded, represents the amount payable to each employee as a result 
of involuntary termination at the end of the reporting period, and approximates the present value of the final 
obligation. 

 
n) Dividend distribution to shareholders: 

The Group recognizes a liability to make cash and non-cash distributions to shareholders of the Parent Company 
when the distribution is authorized, and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. A distribution is 
authorized when it is approved by the shareholders of the Parent Company at the Annual General Meeting. A 
corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.  
 
Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement 
recognized directly in equity. Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of 
the liability and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss. 
 
Distributions for the year that are approved after the reporting date are disclosed as an event after the date of 
consolidated statement of financial position. 
 

o) Share capital: 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown 
in equity as a deduction from the proceeds. 
 

p) Share premium: 
This represents cash received in excess of the par value of the shares issued. The share premium is not available 
for distribution except in cases stipulated by law. 

 
q) Treasury shares: 

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own shares that have been issued, subsequently reacquired by 
the Group and not yet reissued or canceled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method. Under 
the cost method, the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra equity account.  When 
the treasury shares are reissued, gains are credited to a separate account in shareholders’ equity “treasury shares 
reserve” which is not distributable till the holding period of treasury shares. Any realized losses are charged to the 
same account to the extent of the credit balance on that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained 
earnings, reserves, and then share premium. Gains realized subsequently on the sale of treasury shares are first 
used to offset any recorded losses in the order of share premium, reserves, retained earnings and the treasury 
shares reserve account. No cash dividends are paid on these shares. The issue of bonus shares increases the 
number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without affecting the total cost 
of treasury shares.  
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Where any of the Group’s company purchases the Parent Company’s equity share capital (treasury shares), the 
consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs is deducted from equity attributable to the 
Parent Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently 
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs is included in 
equity attributable to the Parent Company’s shareholders. 
 

r) Revenue from contracts with customers: 
The Group is primarily in the business of providing various oilfields (i.e. cementing, simulations services) and non-
oilfields services (i.e. health and safety services). Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when 
control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which 
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group has generally concluded that 
it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring 
them to the customer. 
 
The Group applies a five-step model as follows to account for revenue arising from contracts: 
 Step 1: Identify the contract with the customer – A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more 

parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be 
met. 

 Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract – A performance obligation is a promise in a 
contract with the customer to transfer goods or services to the customer. 

 Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the 
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods and services to a customer, 
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

 Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts – For a contract that has 
more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the transaction price to each performance 
obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in 
exchange for satisfying each performance obligation. 

 Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation. 
 

The Group exercises judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when 
applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. 

 
The Group recognizes revenue either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies contractual 
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers. The Group transfers control of a good 
or service over time (rather than at a point in time) when any of the following criteria are met: 
 The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as 

the Group performs.  
 The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset (e.g., work in process) that the customer controls as 

the asset is created or enhanced, or 
 The Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has 

an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. 
 
Control is transferred at a point in time if none of the criteria for a good or service to be transferred over time are 
met. The Group considers the following factors in determining whether control of an asset has been transferred: 
 The Group has a present right to payment for the asset. 
 The customer has legal title to the asset. 
 The Group has transferred physical possession of the asset. 
 The customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. 
 The customer has accepted the asset. 
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The Group recognizes contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations 
and reports these amounts as other liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position. Similarly, if the 
Group satisfies a performance obligation before it receives the consideration, the Group recognizes either a contract 
asset or a receivable in its consolidated statement of financial position, depending on whether something other than 
the passage of time is required before the consideration is due. 
 
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer are capitalized when incurred as the Group expects to 
recover these costs and such costs would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained. Sales 
commission incurred by the Group is expensed as the amortization period of such costs is less than a year. 
Revenue for the Group arises from the following activities: 

 
 Sales 

Sales represent the total invoiced value of goods sold during the year. Revenue from sale of goods is recognized 
at the point in time when or as the Group transfers control of the goods to the customer. For standalone sales, 
that are neither customized by the Group nor subject to significant integration services, control transfers at the 
point in time the customer takes undisputed delivery of the goods. Delivery occurs when the goods have been 
shipped to the specific location, have been purchased at store by the customer, the risks of obsolescence and 
loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the goods in accordance with 
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria 
for acceptance have been satisfied.  
 
When such items are either customized or sold together with significant integration services, the goods and 
services represent a single combined performance obligation over which control is considered to transfer over 
time. This is because the combined product is unique to each customer (has no alternative use) and the Group 
has an enforceable right to payment for the work completed to date. Revenue for these performance obligations 
is recognized over time as the recognized on or integration work is performed. 
 

 Rendering of services 
Revenue from service contracts is recognized when the service is rendered. The Group enters into fixed price 
contracts with its customers. Customers are required to pay in advance and the relevant payment due dates are 
specified in each contract. Revenue is recognized over time based on the ratio between the number of hours of 
services provided in the current period and the total number of such hours expected to be provided under each 
contract. 

 
 Other income 

Other income is recognized on accrual basis. 
 

s) Provisions: 
A provision is recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is 
material, the amount of a provision is the future value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the 
obligation.  

 
Contingent liabilities recognized in a business combination 
Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are initially measured at fair value at the acquisition date. 
At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the amount 
that would be recognized in accordance with IAS 37 and the amount recognized initially less cumulative amount of 
income recognized in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15. 
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Onerous contracts 
An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Group cannot avoid 
because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected 
to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, 
which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. 
 
If the Group has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognized and measured 
as a provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Group recognizes 
any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract. 

 
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses. 

 
t) Leases: 

Group as a lessee 
The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognizes 
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the 
lessee. 

 
Right-of-use assets 
The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying 
asset is available for use). Right of use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right of use assets includes 
the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain 
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized right of use assets are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right of use assets are subject to 
impairment. 

 
Lease liabilities 
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of 
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index 
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the 
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for 
terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease 
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expense in the period on which the event or 
condition that triggers the payment occurs. 
 
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its current borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the 
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of profit and reduced for 
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, 
a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to 
purchase the underlying asset. 

 
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of property and equipment 
(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a 
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment 
that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are 
recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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u) National Labor Support (NLST): 
National Labor Support Tax (NLST) is calculated at 2.5% of the profit attributable to the shareholders of the Parent 
Company before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat, and Board of Directors’ remuneration, and after deducting the 
Parent Company’s share of profit from associates and subsidiaries listed in Boursa Kuwait, share of NLST paid by 
subsidiaries listed in Boursa Kuwait, and cash dividends received from companies listed in Boursa Kuwait in 
accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and Ministerial resolution No. 24 of 2006 and their Executive Regulations. 
 

v) Zakat: 
Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit attributable to the shareholders of the Parent before contribution to KFAS, 
NLST, Zakat, and Board of Directors’ remuneration, and after deducting the Parent Company’s share of profit from 
Kuwaiti shareholding associates and subsidiaries, share of Zakat paid by Kuwaiti shareholding subsidiaries and 
cash dividends received from Kuwaiti shareholding companies in accordance with Law No. 46 of 2006 and 
Ministerial resolution No. 58 of 2007 and their Executive Regulations. 

 
w) Foreign currencies: 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Kuwaiti Dinars at rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the 
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency as at the end of reporting period are 
retranslated into Kuwaiti Dinars at rates of exchange prevailing on that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair 
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair 
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
not retranslated. 

 
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are 
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the period. Translation differences on non-monetary items 
such as equity instruments which are classified as financial assets at FVTPL are reported as part of the fair value 
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items such as equity instruments classified as FVOCI are 
included in “cumulative changes in fair value” in the consolidated other comprehensive income.  

 
x) Contingencies: 

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements unless it is probable as a result of 
past events that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle a present, legal or constructive 
obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated. Else, they are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of 
resources embodying economic losses is remote. 

 
Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of 
economic benefits as a result of past events is probable. 

 
y) Segment reporting: 

Segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it earns 
revenue and incurs costs. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker is identified as the person being 
responsible for allocating resources, assessing performance and making strategic decisions regarding the operating 
segments. 

 
z) Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments: 

The Group makes judgments, estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The preparation of consolidated 
financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenue and expenses during the year. The actual results may differ from such estimates. 
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1- Judgments: 
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which are described in Note 2, management has 
made the following judgments that have significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated 
financial statements. 

 
 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. The determination of whether the revenue recognition criteria as 
specified under IFRS 15 and revenue policy for revenue from contracts with customers explained in Note 
(2 – r) are met requires significant judgment. 

 
 Determination of contract costs 

Determination of costs which are directly related to the specific contract or attributable to the contract activity 
in general requires significant judgment. The determination of contract cost has a significant impact upon 
revenue recognition in respect of long-term contracts. The Group follows guidance of IFRS 15 for 
determination of contract cost and revenue recognition. 
 

 Provision for expected credit losses and inventories 
The determination of the recoverability of the amount due from customers and the marketability of the 
inventories and the factors determining the impairment of the receivables and inventories involve significant 
judgment. 
 

 Classification of financial assets  
On acquisition of a financial asset, the Group decides whether it should be classified as “at fair value through 
profit or loss”, “at fair value through other comprehensive income” or “at amortized cost”. IFRS 9 requires 
all financial assets, except equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of 
the Group’s business model for managing the assets of the instrument’s contractual cash flow 
characteristics. The Group follows the guidance of IFRS 9 on classifying its financial assets and is explained 
in Note (2 – d). 

 
 Business combinations 

At the time of acquisition to subsidiaries, the Parent Company considers whether the acquisition represents 
the acquisition of a business or of an asset (or a group of assets and liabilities). The Parent Company 
accounts for an acquisition as a business combination where an integrated set of activities is acquired in 
addition to the assets. More specifically, consideration is made to the extent of which significant processes 
are acquired. The significance of processes requires significant judgment. 
 
Where the acquisition of subsidiaries does not represent a business, it is accounted for as an acquisition of 
an asset (or a group of assets and liabilities). The cost of acquisition is allocated to the assets and liabilities 
acquired based on their relative fair values, and no goodwill or deferred tax is recognized. 

 
 Taxes 

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in 
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the 
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. 
 

 Control assessment 
When determining control over an investee, management considers whether the Group has a ‘de facto’ 
power to control an investee if it holds less than 50% of the investee’s voting rights. The assessment of the 
investee’s relevant activities and the ability to use the Parent Company’s power to affect the investee’s 
variable returns requires significant judgment.  
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 Significant influence assessment 
When determining significant influence over an investee, management considers whether the Group has 
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee if it holds less than 
20% of the investee’s voting rights. The assessment, which requires significant judgment, involves 
consideration of the Group’s representation on the investee’s Board of Directors, participation in policy 
making decisions and material transactions between the investor and investee. 
 

 Leases 
Critical judgements required in the application of IFRS 16 include, among others, the following: 
- Identifying whether a contract (or part of a contract) includes a lease; 
- Determining whether it is reasonably certain that an extension or termination option will be exercised; 
- Classification of lease agreements (when the entity is a lessor); 
- Determination of whether variable payments are in-substance fixed; 
- Establishing whether there are multiple leases in an arrangement, 
- Determining the selling prices of lease and non-lease components. 
 

2- Estimates and assumptions: 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimating uncertainty at the end of the 
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next year are discussed below. 

 
 Fair value of unquoted financial assets 

If the market for a financial asset is not active or not available (or unquoted securities), the Group establishes 
fair value by using valuation techniques. They include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference 
to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing 
models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances. This valuation requires the Group to make 
estimates about expected future cash flows and discount rates that are subject to uncertainty. 
 

 Useful lives of depreciable assets 
The Group reviews its estimate of useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date based on the 
expected utility of assets. Uncertainties in these estimates mainly relate to obsolescence and changes in 
operations. 

 
 Provision for expected credit losses and inventories 

The extent of provision for expected credit losses and inventories involves estimation process. The provision 
for expected credit loss is based on a forward looking ECL approach. Bad debts are written off when 
identified. The carrying cost of inventories is written down to their net realizable value when the inventories 
are damaged or become wholly or partly obsolete or their selling prices have declined. The benchmarks for 
determining the amount of provision or written-off include ageing analysis, technical assessment and 
subsequent events. The provisions and write-down of accounts receivable and inventories are subject to 
management approval. 
 

 Impairment of non-financial assets  
Impairment happens when the carrying value of asset (or cash generating unit) exceeds the recoverable 
amount. It is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The fair value less costs to sell 
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of 
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in 
use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for 
the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or 
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance (or cash generating unit) being 
tested. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow 
model as well as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. 
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 Taxes 
The Group recognizes a liability for the anticipated taxes levied in the jurisdictions of its activity based on 
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different 
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax 
provisions in the period in which such determination is made. Any changes in the estimates and 
assumptions may have an impact on the carrying values of the deferred taxes. 

 
 Leases 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty in the application of IFRS 16 include, among others, the following: 
- Estimation of the lease term. 
- Determination of the appropriate rate to discount the lease payments. 
- Assessment of whether a right-of-use asset is impaired. 
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4- Investment in associates 
Investment in associates consists of the following: 

 

Name of associate 

  
Country of 

incorporation 

  
Principal 
activities 

 Percentage of 
ownership  

 
Carrying value 

 2024  2023  2024  2023 
United Precision Drilling 

Company – W.L.L. (“UPDC”) 
 State of 

Kuwait 
 Sale of oil 

equipment 
 

47.5%  47.5% 
 

3,261,323 
 

2,987,237 

JTC Logistics Transportation & 
Stevedoring Co. – K.S.C.P. 
(“JTC”) 

 

State of 
Kuwait  

  
Transport 

and 
Stevedoring 

operation  

 

21.22%  20% 

 

15,127,216 

 

13,627,891 
          18,388,539  16,615,128 

 
Movement during the year is as follows: 

 2024  2023 
Balance at the beginning of the year 16,615,128  - 
Related to acquisition of a subsidiary  -  16,615,128 
Additions  675,371  - 
Group’s share of results from associates 2,436,388  - 
Group’s share of associates’ other comprehensive income 64,157  - 
Cash dividends received (1,402,505)  - 
Balance at the end of the year 18,388,539  16,615,128 
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Summarized financial information for associates is as follows: 
 2024 

Summarized statement of financial position: UPDC  JTC  Total 
Assets:      
Non-current assets 10,331,229  57,423,613  67,754,842 
Current assets 30,771,866  17,908,723  48,680,589 
Total assets 41,103,095  75,332,336  116,435,431 
      
Liabilities:      
Non-current liabilities 7,947,381  10,599,683  18,547,064 
Current liabilities 26,939,960  9,087,335  36,027,295 
Total Liabilities 34,887,341  19,687,018  54,574,359 
Net assets 6,215,754  55,645,318  61,861,072 
Ownership interest  47.5%  21.22%  - 
Group’s share in associates’ net assets 2,952,483  11,807,937  14,760,420 
Goodwill 308,840  3,319,279  3,628,119 
Carrying value of investment in associates 3,261,323  15,127,216  18,388,539 
Fair value of the Group’s interest in the quoted 

associates  -  12,128,488  12,128,488 
      
Summarized statement of profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income:      
Operating revenue 48,766,481  28,508,613  77,275,094 
Operating costs (46,626,280)  (21,817,788)  (68,444,068) 
Profit for the year  2,140,201  6,690,825  8,831,026 
Other comprehensive income for the year -  302,342  302,342 
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,140,201  6,993,167  9,133,368 
 
Group’s share of results from associates 1,016,595  1,419,793  2,436,388 
Group’s share of associates’ other comprehensive 

income -  64,157  64,157 
 1,016,595  1,483,950  2,500,545 

      
Cash dividends received  742,505  660,000  1,402,505 
Contingent liabilities of the associates 49,824,358  4,656,064  54,480,422 

 
 2023 

Summarized statement of financial position: UPDC  JTC  Total 
Assets:      
Non-current assets 10,811,449  49,989,118  60,800,567 
Current assets 23,496,352  25,707,094  49,203,446 
Total assets 34,307,801  75,696,212  110,004,013 
      
Liabilities:      
Non-current liabilities 9,780,050  16,494,567  26,274,617 
Current liabilities 18,889,021  7,640,171  26,529,192 
Total Liabilities 28,669,071  24,134,738  52,803,809 
Net assets 5,638,730  51,561,474  57,200,204 
Ownership interest 47.5%  20%  - 
Group’s share in associates’ net assets 2,678,397  10,312,295  12,990,692 
Goodwill 308,840  3,315,596  3,624,436 
Carrying value of investment in associates 2,987,237  13,627,891  16,615,128 
Fair value of the Group’s interest in the quoted associates -  9,720,000  9,720,000 

      
Contingent liabilities of associates 39,217,637  7,209,309  46,426,946 
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5- Investment joint venture 
Investment in joint venture consists of the following: 

 

Name of joint venture 

  
Country of 

incorporation 

  
Principal 
activities 

 Percentage of 
ownership 

  
Carrying value 

 2024  2023  2024  2023 
United Qmax Drilling Fluids Company 

– W.L.L. 
 State of 

Kuwait 
 Petroleum 

activities  
 

100% * 
 

51% 
 

- 
 

1,601,491 
          -  1,601,491 
 
*  During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group acquired control over the joint venture, and its ownership 

interest in the joint venture increased to 100%, as detailed in Note 2 – b. 
 
Movement during the year is as follows: 

 2024  2023 
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,601,491  - 
Related to acquisition of a subsidiary  -  1,601,491 
Group’s share of results from joint venture until date of obtaining 

control 2,159,378  - 
Cash dividends received (159,038)  - 
Effect of obtaining control over the joint venture (Note 2 - b) (3,601,831)  - 
Balance at the end of the year -  1,601,491 

 
Summarized financial information for the joint venture is as follows: 
 
Summarized statement of financial position:  2024  2023 
Total assets  -  6,406,738 
Total Liabilities  -  3,266,559 
Net assets  -  3,140,179 
Ownership interest   -  51% 
Group’s share in joint venture’s net assets  -  1,601,491 
Carrying value of investment in a joint venture  -  1,601,491 

 
 

Summarized statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income: 
 

From January 1, 
2024, till date of 

control 
Operating revenue  13,061,470 
Operating costs  (8,827,396) 
Profit for the year   4,234,074 
Group’s share of results from joint venture  2,159,378 
   
Cash dividends received   159,038 

 
6- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) 

 
  2024  2023 

Quoted securities  -  19,401 
Unquoted securities  605,467  1,153,319 
  605,467  1,172,720 
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Movement during the year is as follows: 
  2024  2023 

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,172,720  - 
Related to acquisition of a subsidiary  -  1,172,720 
Disposals  (20,110)  - 
Change in fair value  (547,143)  - 
Balance at the end of the year  605,467  1,172,720 
 
Financial assets at FVOCI are measured at fair value as presented in Note (28). 
 

7- Inventories 
  2024  2023 

Cement, acidizing chemicals and processed mud  5,760,640  3,821,343 
Spare parts and tools  1,532,049  1,499,732 
Finished goods  195,374  212,326 
  7,488,063  5,533,401 
Less: provision for slow moving inventories (a)  (1,049,797)  (1,001,956) 
  6,438,266  4,531,445 

 
(a) Provision for slow moving inventories: 

Movement in the provision for slow moving inventories is as follows: 
 

  2024  2023 
Balance at the beginning of the year  1,001,956  936,027 
Charge for the year (included under cost of sales and 

services rendered) 
 

25,260  28,454 
Provision no longer required (included under cost of sales 

and services rendered) 
 

-  (72,615) 
Related to acquisition of a subsidiary  22,581  110,090 

  1,049,797  1,001,956 
 

8- Trade receivables and contract assets 
  2024  2023 

Trade receivables (a)  7,703,813  9,115,824 
Less: provision for expected credit losses (b)  (426,588)  )182,453 (  
Net trade receivables   7,277,225  8,933,371 
     

Contract assets   3,998,713  3,721,742 
  11,275,938  12,655,113 

 
(a) Trade receivables: 

    

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally due within 60 days.  
 

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified model of recognizing lifetime expected credit losses as these items do 
not have a significant financing component. In measuring the expected credit losses, trade receivables have 
been assessed on a collective basis respectively and grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and 
the days past due. 

 
The expected loss rates are based on aging profile of customers over the past 3 to 5 years before December 31, 
2024 and January 1, 2024 respectively as well as the corresponding historical credit losses during that period. 
The historical rates are adjusted to reflect current and forwarding looking macroeconomic factors affecting the 
customer’s ability to settle the amount outstanding. However, given the short period exposed to credit risk, the 
impact of these macroeconomic factors has not been considered significant within the reporting period. 
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Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Failure to make payments 
within 365 days from the invoice date and failure to engage with the Group on alternative payment arrangement 
amongst other is considered indicators of no reasonable expectation of recovery and therefore is considered as 
credit impaired. 

 
The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables and contract assets, based on the Group’s provision 
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different loss patterns for 
different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance based on past due status is not further 
distinguished between the Group’s different customer base.

  
  Trade receivables     

December 31, 2024: Contract 
assets *  Current  

Less than 
90 days  

91 – 180 
days  

More than 
180 days 

 
Total 

Average expected credit 
loss rates -  0.28%  1.22%  4.45%  47.74%   

Gross carrying amounts 3,998,713  4,479,919  2,006,246  443,069  774,579  11,702,526 
Lifetime expected credit 

losses -  (12,576)  (24,534)  (19,714)  (369,764)  (426,588) 
Net trade receivables and 

contract assets 3,998,713  4,467,343  1,981,712  423,355  404,815  11,275,938 
  

  Trade receivables     

December 31, 2023: Contract 
assets *  Current  

Less than 
90 days  

91 – 180 
days  

More than 
180 days 

 
Total 

Average expected credit loss 
rates -  0.10%  0.61%  2.09%  23.45%   

Gross carrying amounts 3,721,742  3,496,966  3,313,993  1,787,344  517,521  12,837,566 
Lifetime expected credit 

losses -  (3,484)  (20,197)  (37,438)  (121,334)  (182,453) 
Net trade receivables and 

contract assets 3,721,742  3,493,482  3,293,796  1,749,906  396,187  12,655,113 
 

* The Group’s management has assessed that the expected credit losses do not materially impact contract 
assets, as these balances are due from Kuwait Oil Company (KOC), a government-owned entity with high 
credit quality, and are billed regularly, with no history of default. 

 
(b) Provision for expected credit losses: 

Movement in provision for expected credit losses during the year is as follows: 
 

  2024  2023 
Balance at the beginning of the year  182,453  420,129 
Charged during the year  243,200  - 
Provision no longer required  -  (75,656) 
Related to acquisition of a subsidiary  935  63,463 
Utilized during the year  -  (225,483) 
Balance at the end of the year  426,588  182,453 

 
9- Prepayments and other debit balances 

  2024  2023 
Advance payments to suppliers  1,260,347  1,068,310 
Staff receivables  519,088  411,718 
Deposits and other debit balances  785,674  768,909 
  2,565,109  2,248,937 
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10- Related party disclosures 
The Group has entered into various transactions with related parties, i.e., shareholders and entities under common 
control and other related parties. The prices and terms of payment related to these transactions are approved by the 
Group's management. The significant related party transactions and balances are as follows: 
       
Balances included in the consolidated 

statement of financial position: 
Entities under 

common 
control 

 

Shareholders  

 Other 
related 
parties 

 
Total 

   2024  2023 
Financial assets at FVTPL 792  -  -  792  319 
Financial assets at FVOCI -  -  -  -  19,401 
Term deposits 8,505,037  -  -  8,505,037  3,002,346 
Bank balances 3,778,212  -  -  3,778,212  1,370,494 
Due from a related party (a) -  -  -  -  278,151 
Account payables and accrued expenses  -  -  -  -  (3,673,387) 
Dividends payable (Note 18) -  (453,301)  -  (453,301)  (383,249) 
Due to a related party (14,093)  -  -  (14,093)  - 
          

Transactions included in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income: 

   

   

   
Interest income 352,054  -  -  352,054  - 
General and administrative expenses 9,886  -  -  9,886  101,693 
Cost of sales and services rendered -  -  -  -  28,051 
Other income  -  -  30,000  30,000  - 
 
Contingent liabilities    

   
   

Letters of guarantee  7,837,577  -  -  7,837,577  6,457,426 
 
(a) Due from a related party is classified in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows: 
 

  2024  2023 
Non-current portion  -  17,579 
Current portion  -  260,572 

  -  278,151 
 

Compensation to key management personnel: 
 

 
Transactions values for the 
year ended December 31  

 
 

Balances outstanding as at  
December 31 

 2024  2023  2024  2023 
Salaries and other short-term benefits 524,632  685,353  168,000  56,800 
Employees’ end of service benefits 16,809  33,157  32,221  15,412 
Board of directors’ remuneration 169,381  136,851  169,381  136,851 
 710,822  855,361  369,602  209,063 

 
11- Term deposits 

The interest rates on term deposits ranges from 3.875% to 4.55% per annum (2023: 4.46% to 4.55% per annum). 
These deposits have average contractual maturities ranging from three months to twelve months (2023: ranging from 
three months to twelve months) and are denominated in Kuwaiti Dinars and placed with local banks. 
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12- Bank balances and cash  
  2024  2023 

Cash on hand  5,563  5,404 
Cash in portfolio  407,162  - 
Cash at banks  4,828,842  2,655,557 
  5,241,567  2,660,961 

 
13- Share capital 

Authorized, issued and paid up capital consists of 100,000,000 shares of 100 fils each (2023: Authorized, issued and 
paid up capital consists of 100,000,000 shares of 100 fils each) and all shares are in cash. 

 
14- Treasury shares 

  2024  2023 
Number of treasury shares  9,659,912  9,659,912 
Percentage of issued shares  9.66%  9.66% 
Market value (KD)  8,693,921  7,756,909 
Cost (KD)  )6,002,371 (   )6,002,371 (  
 
Reserves equivalent to the cost of the treasury shares are held and not available for distribution during the holding 
period of such shares by the Group as per Capital Market Authority guidelines. 
 

15- Statutory reserve 
As required by the Companies Law and the Parent Company's Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for the year 
attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and Board of Directors’ 
remuneration is transferred to statutory reserve. The Parent Company may resolve to discontinue such annual 
transfers when the reserve exceeds 50% of the capital. This reserve is not available for distribution except in cases 
stipulated by Law and the Parent Company's Articles of Association. The Parent Company’s shareholders at the 
Annual General Assembly Meeting held on March 28, 2019, approved to discontinue the transfer to the statutory 
reserve, as the statutory reserve balance exceeded 50% of the Parent Company’s capital. 
 

16- Voluntary reserve 
As required by the Parent Company’s Articles of Association,10% of the profit for the year attributable to shareholders 
of the Parent Company before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and Board of Directors’ remuneration is transferred 
to the voluntary reserve. Such annual transfers may be discontinued by a resolution of the shareholders’ General 
Assembly upon recommendation by the Board of Directors. The Parent Company’s shareholders at the Annual 
General Assembly Meeting held on March 28, 2019, approved to discontinue the transfer to the voluntary reserve. 

 
17- Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 

  2024  2023 
Balance at the beginning of the year  2,779,532  3,452,533 
Charged during the year  801,611  610,253 
Paid during the year  (365,161)  (1,698,784) 
Related to acquisition of a subsidiary  55,840  415,530 
Balance at the end of the year  3,271,822  2,779,532 
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18- Account payables and accrued expenses 
  2024  2023 

Trade payables (a)  3,877,777  2,024,869 
Dividends payable (Note 10)  453,301  383,249 
Other dividends payable  303,339  260,181 
Accrued staff costs  1,786,694  1,681,370 
Advances received  378,009  357,868 
Taxes payable  722,737  444,330 
Accrued Board of Directors’ remuneration (Note 10)  169,381  136,851 
Contract liabilities  440,447  485,288 
Due to a related party for acquisition of a subsidiary (c)  -  3,544,017 
Other accrued expenses and provisions   2,681,809  2,332,326 

  10,813,494  11,650,349 
 

a) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on average period of 90 days. 
 

b) The carrying amounts of accounts payable and other credit balances largely correspond to their fair values. 
 

c) The outstanding amount of KD 3,544,017 as of December 31, 2023, includes KD 3,529,920 payable to a related 
party for the acquisition of the subsidiary, United Oil Projects Company – K.S.C.C., which was acquired in the 
prior year, and this amount was settled during the current year. 

 
19- Sales and services revenue 

Below is the disaggregation of the Group’s sales and services revenue: 
   
Type of goods or services  2024  2023 
Oil field contracts     
Pumping services   33,085,604  32,007,512 
     
Non-oil field contracts     
Health, safety, environment and man-power supply services  4,421,850  6,499,158 
Other services  892,855  1,016,129 
Sale of chemicals and other material   2,628,589  - 
Total sales and services revenue  41,028,898  39,522,799 
 
Timing of revenue recognition 

    

Goods and services transferred at a point in time  2,916,419  57,627 
Goods and services transferred over time  38,112,479  39,465,172 
Total sales and services revenue   41,028,898  39,522,799 
 
Geographical markets 

    

State of Kuwait   40,129,914  39,430,887 
Others  898,984  91,912 
  41,028,898  39,522,799 
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20- Investment income 
  2024  2023 
     

Dividends income  41,989  60,099 
Realized gain on sale of financial assets at FVTPL  2,500  - 
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL  469  782 
  44,958  60,881 

21- General and administrative expenses 
  2024  2023 

Staff costs  2,077,892  1,957,220 
Depreciation expense (Note 3)  59,025  30,783 
Amortization of right-of-use assets  30,072  50,660 
Interest expense on lease liabilities  9,726  21,140 
Professional fees  201,060  101,072 
Marketing and business development expenses  69,495  188,288 
Charity expense  172,555  85,985 
Other expenses   882,673  557,382 
  3,502,498  2,992,530 

 
22- Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS) and Other Taxation 

 
KFAS 
Contribution to KFAS is calculated at 1% of the net profit attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company before 
contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat, and Board of Directors’ remuneration. 
 
Movement in accrued contribution to KFAS is as follows: 

  2024  2023 
Due amount at the beginning of the year  91,234  72,871 
Deducted from the net profit for the year for the KFAS  107,270  91,234 
Paid during the year  (91,234)  )72,871 (  
Due amount at the end of the year  107,270  91,234 
 
Other Taxation 
 
Pillar 2 Income Taxes  
In 2021, OECD’s Inclusive Framework (IF) on Base Erosion and Profit Shifting (BEPS) had agreed to a two-pillar 
solution in order to address tax challenges arising from digitalization of the economy. Under Pillar 2, multinational 
entities (MNE Group) whose revenue exceeds EUR 750 million are liable to pay corporate income tax at a minimum 
effective tax rate of 15% in each jurisdiction they operate. The jurisdiction in which the Group operates has joined the 
IF.  
 
Currently the Group’s revenue does not exceed EUR 750 million but may be exposed to the global minimum tax by 
virtue of the Ultimate Parent Company which is domiciled and operating in the State of Kuwait. On 31 December 
2024, the State of Kuwait enacted Law No. 157 of 2024 (the “Law”), introducing a Domestic Minimum Top-Up Tax 
(DMTT) effective from 2025 on entities which are part of MNE Group with annual revenues of EUR 750 million or 
more. The Law provides that a top-up tax shall be payable on the taxable income at a rate equal to the difference 
between 15% and the effective tax rate of all constituent entities of the MNE Group operating within Kuwait. The 
taxable income and effective tax rate shall be computed in accordance with the Executive regulations which will be 
issued within six months from the date of issue of the Law.  
 
In the absence of Executive Regulations in Kuwait, the expected impact in 2025 cannot be reasonably estimated at 
this time.  
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23- Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the Parent Company’s Shareholders 
There are no potential dilutive ordinary shares. The information necessary to calculate basic and diluted earnings per 
share based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is as follows: 

 
  2024  2023 

     
Profit for the year attributable to the Parent Company’s 

Shareholders  13,424,081  8,595,516 
     
Number of shares outstanding:     
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  100,000,000  100,000,000 
Less: Weighted average number of treasury shares   (9,659,912)  (3,054,739) 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 

year  90,340,088  96,945,261 
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the Parent 

Company’s Shareholders (fils)  148.59  88.66 
 
24- Shareholders Annual General Assembly and Board of Directors of the Parent Company’s  

The Board of Directors’ meeting held on March 25, 2025, recommended cash dividends of 70 fils per share (totaling 
KD 6,323,806), and Board of Directors’ remuneration of KD 169,381 for the year ended December 31, 2024. These 
recommendations are subject to the approval of the Parent Company’s Shareholders’ Annual General Assembly. 
 
The Ordinary General Assembly of the Parent Company’s Shareholders held on May 20, 2024 approved the 
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023 and approved the recommendations of the 
Board of Directors to distribute cash dividends of 60 fils per share (totaling KD 5,420,405), and remuneration for the 
Parent Company’s Board of Directors amounting to KD 136,851 for the year ended on December 31, 2023. 

 
The Ordinary General Assembly of the Parent Company’s Shareholders held on May 1, 2023 approved the 
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 and approved the recommendations of the 
Board of Directors to distribute cash dividends of 50 fils per share (totaling KD 4,850,000), and remuneration for the 
Parent Company’s Board of Directors amounting to KD 109,307 for the year ended on December 31, 2022. 

 
25- Contingent liabilities and capital commitments 

 
Contingent liabilities  
The Group provided guarantees for the performance of certain contracts as follows: 
 

  2024  2023 
Letters of guarantee   34,800,575  32,464,543 
Letters of guarantee – related to the Group’s subsidiaries   4,620,726  4,429,590 
  39,421,301  36,894,133 
 
Capital commitments 
As at December 31, 2024, the Group has capital commitments relating to the purchase of property, plant and 
equipment amounting to KD 1,896,268 (2023: KD 1,724,483). 
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27- Financial risk management  
In the normal course of business, the Group uses primary financial instruments such as bank balances and cash, 
term deposits, due from / to related parties, receivables, financial assets at FVOCI, contract assets and liabilities, 
financial assets at FVTPL, lease liabilities and payables. As a result, it is exposed to the risks indicated below. The 
Group currently does not use derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to these risks. 
 
Interest rate risk: 
The financial instruments are exposed to the risk of changes in value due to changes in interest rates for financial 
assets and liabilities with floating rate. The effective interest rates and the periods in which interest-bearing financial 
liabilities are reprised or mature are indicated in the respective notes. 

 
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other 
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit through the impact on floating borrowing rate: 

 
   2024 
  

Increase 
(decrease) in the 

interest rate 

 

Balance 
 As at December 31 

 Effect on 
consolidated 

statement of profit or 
loss 

Term deposits  ± 0.5%   19,116,683  ± 95,583 
 

  2023 
  Increase 

(decrease) in the 
interest rate 

 
Balance 

 As at December 31 

 Effect on consolidated 
statement of profit or 

loss 
Term deposits  ± 0.5%   14,069,746  ± 70,349 

 
Credit risk: 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation causing the other party 
to incur a financial loss. Financial assets which potentially subject the Group to credit risk consist principally of bank 
balances, term deposits, due from a related party, contract assets and receivables. Receivables balance is recognized 
net of provision for expected credit losses. 

 
Bank balances and term deposits 
Bank balances and term deposits are measured at amortized cost is considered to have a low credit risk and the loss 
allowance is based on the 12 months expected loss. The Group’s cash and term deposits are placed with high credit 
rating financial institutions with no previous history of default. Based on management’s assessment, the expected 
credit loss impact arising from such financial assets is insignificant to the Group as the risk of default has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition. 
 
Trade receivables and contract assets 
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The 
demographics of the Group’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country, in which customers 
operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. 

 
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and 
control relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and 
any shipments to major customers are generally covered by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance obtained 
from reputable banks and other financial institutions. 
 
The maximum limit of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from default of the counterparty is the nominal value 
of the bank balances, term deposits, due from a related party, contract assets and receivables. 
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Foreign currency risk: 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions that 
are denominated in a currency other than the Kuwaiti Dinar. The Group may reduce its exposure to fluctuations in 
foreign exchange rates through the use of derivative financial instruments. The Group ensures that the net exposure 
to foreign currency risk is kept to an acceptable level, by dealing in currencies that do not fluctuate significantly against 
the Kuwaiti Dinar. 
 
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates used by 
management against Kuwaiti Dinar: 

 
 Increase / 

(Decrease) against 
Kuwaiti Dinar 

 Effect on the consolidated statement  
of profit or loss and other comprehensive 

income 
   2024  2023 
US Dollars  and other currencies  ± 5%  ± 60,015  ± 67,237 

 
Liquidity risk: 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with 
financial instruments. To manage this risk, the Group periodically assesses the financial viability of customers along 
with planning and managing the Group’s forecasted cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets 
and liabilities. 
 
Maturity table for financial liabilities 
 
 2024 
 1 – 3 

months 
 3 - 12 

months  1 - 5 years  Total 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,840,620  6,972,874  -  10,813,494 
Due to a related party 14,093  -  -  14,093 
Lease liabilities 23,947  40,194  -  64,141 
Total  3,878,660  7,013,068  -  10,891,728 

 
 2023 

 1 – 3 
months 

 3 - 12 
months  1 - 5 years  Total 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 7,839,062  3,811,287  -  11,650,349 
Lease liabilities 67,136  166,225  53,867  287,228 
Total  7,906,198  3,977,512  53,867  11,937,577 

 
Equity price risk: 
Equity price risk is the risk that fair values of equity instruments decrease as the result of changes in level of equity 
indices and the value of individual stocks. The equity price risk exposure arises from the Group’s investment in 
unquoted securities classified as financial assets at FVOCI. The Group is not currently exposed significantly to such 
risk. 
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28- Fair value measurement 
The Group measures the financial assets at FVTPL and financial assets at FVOCI at fair value at each reporting date. 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
 
 In the principal market for the asset or liability. 
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 
All assets and liabilities, measured or disclosed at fair value, are classified in the consolidated financial statements 
through a fair value hierarchy based on the lowest significant inputs level in proportion to the fair value measurement 
as a whole, as follows: 
 
 Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 

directly or indirectly observable. 
 Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 

unobservable. 
 

The following table shows an analysis of captions recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy: 
 

 2024 
 Level 1  Level 3  Total 

Financial assets at FVTPL  792  -  792 
Financial assets at FVOCI -  605,467  605,467 
 792  605,467  606,259 

 
 2023 
 Level 1  Level 3  Total 

Financial assets at FVTPL  319  613,504  613,823 
Financial assets at FVOCI 19,401  1,153,319  1,172,720 
 19,720  1,766,823  1,786,543 

 
There were no transfers between any levels of the fair value hierarchy during the year ended December 31, 2024. 

 
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole at the end of each reporting period. 

 
The fair value of financial liabilities is estimated by discounting the remaining contractual maturities at the current 
market interest rate that is available for similar financial liabilities. 

 
The management assessed that the fair values of cash, term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables and other 
current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

 
The fair value of unquoted instruments and other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future 
cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. 
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The disaggregated movement in items categorized within level 3 is as follows: 
 

  Financial assets 
at FVTPL 

 Financial assets 
at FVOCI 

 Total 
    2024  2023 

         
Balance at the beginning of the year  613,504  1,153,319  1,766,823  612,604 
Recoveries   (613,500)  -  (613,500)  - 
Related to acquisition of a subsidiary  -  -  -  1,153,319 
Change in fair value  (4)  (547,852)  (547,856)  900 
Balance at the end of the year  -  605,467  605,467  1,766,823 
 
The level 3 assets unobservable inputs and sensitivity are as follows: 
 

Description  Unobservable inputs  Average rates  Sensitivity analysis 
       

Equity securities at 
FVOCI  

Investee’s net assets 
are adjusted using 
discount rates to 
determine their fair 
value 

 Discount rate of 
30%  

Any increase or decrease in 
unobservable inputs will thereby 
result to increase or decrease at fair 
value with constant of all other 
factors. 

 
29- Capital risk management 

The Group's objectives when managing capital resources are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going 
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal 
capital resource structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
 
In order to maintain or adjust the capital resource structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders, return paid up capital to shareholders, issue new shares, sell assets to reduce debt, repay loans or 
obtain additional loans. 
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